Warren Commission, Comments


9/28/64
For chronology of publication of Warren Report - going back to possible target date of 2/64 , mentioned by J. Lee Rankin 2/10/63,  [See 9/26/64.]

9/27/64
New York - Mark Lane ... said today that the Warren Commission report makes him even more doubtful.

"It raises more questions than It answers," Lane, 36, told a news conference.  AP 5:47 ped

9/27/64
Bertrand Russell comment: "sorrily incompetent document; and it cover s its authors in shame."  "It is clear that much is still hidden from the public."

Lists prominent members of Russell's "who killed Kennedy committee." AP London

9/27/64
Comment on Warren Report by Thomas G. Buchanan, author of Who Killed Kennedy.  Says it "furnished added details which tend to confirm in general my position that Oswald is neither wholly innocent nor wholly guilty."  Says it "more a matter of public relations than a matter of investigation."  AP Baltimore

9/27/64
Roundup of domestic reaction to the Warren Report.  AP [undated]

9/27/64
General agreement, no hint of his later contention that he not hit by first shot. AP, Austin, Connally reaction to Warren Report 

9/27-29/64
Foreign press comment on Warren Report just before and immediately following its release, from many foreign capitals and printed in various media.  clipped file

9/28/64
Governor Connally disagrees on which shot hit him.  AP Austin

9/28/64
Heads of law enforcement agencies in Dallas either had "no comment"- or were not available for comment today regarding the Warren Commission Report.  San Francisco Examiner AP Dallas

9/28/64
Story on publication of Warren Report quotes Robert Kennedy:

"As I said in Poland last summer, I am convinced that Oswald was solely responsible for what happened and that he did not have any outside help or assistance.  He was a malcontent who could not get along here or in the Soviet Union.

"I have not read the report, nor do I intend to.  But I have been briefed on it and I am completely satisfied that the Commission investigated every lead and examined every piece of evidence.  The Commission's inquiry was thorough and conscientious."  San Francisco Chronicle (AP)

[Also see Warren Commission, 6/29/64; and Warren Report comment, 8/1/66.]

9/28/64
District Attorney Henry Wade and [Ruby defense lawyer] Joe Tonahill quoted as saying they agreed with Warren Report than Oswald probably couldn't have had a fair trial.

Wade angle unsupported by quote.  Tonahill says agrees with Warren Report except that it should have stressed the assassination was "a product of communism," San Francisco Examiner AP, Dallas

9/28/64
Dallas -- Jack Ruby learned about the Warren Commission's Report Sunday from his sister, Mrs. Eva Grant.

But she said he "just didn't comprehend it."

... Sheriff Bill Decker said he also visited Ruby's jail cell to deliver mail.  "He didn't say a word about the report."  San Francisco News Call Bulletin
9/28/64
Clipped file.  Assorted reports on the Warren Report s criticism of the press and press reaction to that criticism.

9/29/64
Warren Report is "the crudest and clumsiest cover-up since the Reichstag fire," Sam Marcy, chairman of the Workers World Party, said here yesterday.

The group, which calls itself Marxist-Leninist organization," charged that the assassination had been "an attempted coup d'etat by the forces of political reaction, virulent racism and unbridled militarism."  New York Times
9/29/64
Washington  ... Why did the man who first attempted to kill General Walker, a passionate advocate of the far right in political philosophy, choose for his next target President Kennedy, an advocate of a political philosophy somewhat left of center? ...  New York Times, Arthur Krock, The Unsolved Mysteries of Motive.

9/29/64
RFK cancelled political rally this morning [as Warren Report appeared] and instead spent the morning with Mrs. JFK.

“It’s been a rough day for both of them," an aide said.  New York Times, Homer Bigart, Ithaca, NY

9/29/64
Survey of congressional reaction to Warren Report.

... Criticism of the FBI and Secret Service was the only portions of the Warren Commission report which did not find complete support on Capitol Hill yesterday ... San Francisco Examiner, Leslie H. Whitten, Washington

9/29/64
Reston comment on Warren Commission and what it has accomplished in its report, suggesting that it "has not so much concluded the Kennedy mystery so much as it has opened up a whole new chapter in the Kennedy Legend."  San Francisco Chronicle, New York Times Service, James Reston, Washington

9/29/64
Comment on Warren Report, in which he concludes that Commission members are absolutely above suspicion that they could have doctored the record.

...  But the truth about the assassination itself was made less credible by the fact that Oswald was murdered in the city jail two days later.  For if there was a conspiracy, nothing would have been so necessary to its success as to silence Oswald ....  San Francisco Chronicle, Walter Lippmann

10/64
Results of Harris Poll taken in early 10[64].  Question: From what you have read or heard, do you feel the full story is in the Warren Commission Report?  Or do you think there are still a lot of unanswered questions about who killed President John Kennedy and how it was done?

Full story is in report
45%

Still unanswered questions
45%

Not sure
10%

[12/64 - Citizens' Committee of Inquiry Newsletter]

10/3/64
The finding that one man, without conspiracy, assassinated President Kennedy has evoked widespread skepticism and outright disbelief in many newspaper throughout the world ...  New York Times, Max Frankel, Washington

10/3/64
National Guardian, report to readers, a chapter still not closed.

... the conclusion might be drawn that the Report was the product of a group of naive men.  But this cannot be said of a panel made up of an eminent jurist, seasoned politicians, a banker and a master spy ...  National Guardian
[Also see Guardian, same date, Riddles in the Warren Report/Oswald case: Still Mystery.

10/3/64
Peoples World, San Francisco – Warren Report, FBI role shady.

10/3/64
See Lane, same date.

10/3/64
Summary of Lane's criticism of Report, see story, end of page 5. National Guardian
10/6/64
Jack Ruby believes the Warren Commission report proved of little value in dispelling rumors that he was involved in a plot to assassinate President Kennedy, Ruby's chief defense lawyer [Clayton Fowler] said today.

… [Fowler] believes Ruby "lacks the mental capacity" to understand the meaning and significance of the report.  AP 925 pcs

10/5/64
Three pages of 4-page weekly devoted to emotional defense of Warren Report and Commission members, and to attack on critics of the Report.

"Statements of this kind imply not just one but three conspiracies.  One was a conspiracy to kill the President.  The second was a conspiracy to kill Oswald lest he talk.  The third is a conspiracy by the Warren Commission to hush up the facts.  These are monstrous charges, and cannot honorably be made on the basis of surmise." I. F. Stone's Weekly
10/10/64
Analysis of the Commission's methods.  Not openly challenging, but highly critical. The New Republic. Warren Report: Case for the Prosecution.  Murray Kempton.

10/10/64
Survey of foreign editorial opinion.  National Guardian
10/11/64
Bertrand Russell renews criticism in article in Daily Worker.  Charges rifle specifications don't match, witnesses ignored or discounted. San Francisco Chronicle, Reuters, London

10/12/64
Columbia University research team changes Warren Commission failed to interview all persons able to give information on assassination.

George and Patricia Nash , New Leader article on The Other Witnesses, say Warren Commission failed to question all witnesses available to Tippit slaying.

Story appears on p. 47 of 52-page paper, following sports and financial news and preceding want ads.  New York Times

10/12/64
The Report mentions that "the front door" and "the rear door" of the Depository were guarded from about six minutes after the shooting.  What it omits, however, is that there were four separate "rear doors," all of which were open and, only one of which was guarded.  …  No one guarding any one of these doors could see any of the others.  This conceivably might be relevant to a question of whether Oswald acted alone.  As Shelly [Bill Shelley, Oswald's foreman] told us, "Any one of a thousand different people could have entered or left the building and nobody would have known it." The New Leader, The other witnesses, George and Patricia Nash

10/12/64
Says Warren Report will continue to be challenged on details but accepts without argument its main contentions. The New Leader, The Triumph of Caliban., by Karl E. Meyer, p. 4

10/12/64
Abroad : Praise -- and Doubts., U.S. News & World Report p. 62 [sidebar]

10/17/64
Lane, Joesten and Buchanan, in separate interviews agree Warren Report raises more questions that it answers and simplifies the task of disproving Oswald's guilt.  National Guardian, Jack A. Smith

10/17/64
In column arguing against criticism of FBI by Warren Report, Buckley names Ford, Boggs and Russell as the three members of the commission who argued against criticizing the FBI in the report. San Francisco Examiner, William F. Buckley, Jr.

10/24/64
Results of Harris Poll, 10/19.

The poll was taken soon after the Report was made public.  Compared with a Harris Poll taken before the findings were published, the percentage of Americans convinced that Oswald was the assassin increased from 76% to 87% [2% now believe he is innocent, opposed to 3% before the Report, while 11% are "not sure," compared with 21% before the Report.]

A total of 45% of those polled do not believe "the full story is in the Report."  Another 10% are not sure.

To the question, "Do you feel Lee Harvey Oswald had accomplices or did he do it alone?", 31% were convinced Oswald was involved in a conspiracy [compared with 40% before the Report], 13% were "not sure," while 56% believe that it was Oswald alone.

[See Lane, 8/64]

10/31/64
In a panel discussion of the Warren Commission Report televised 10/18, Percy Foreman, president of the National Association of Defense Attorneys, said:

"I would like to offer this suggestion with reference to the foreign reaction to the shooting.  It's impossible for any country in Europe to conceive of a fact situation under which an individual would have enough freedom to where he could commit, unaided and without a great deal of help, this horrible crime.  This is the only country in the world that it could have happened because of our freedom of the individual, and that's why the rest of the world has hesitancy to accept the verity of the Warren findings …

"The reason they [people abroad] believe there was a conspiracy is because there would needs to have been one anywhere else in the world except here ... And it's impossible; this thing could not have happened in any country on earth except America."

The moderator asked; "Why could it happen here without a con- ?"

Foreman broke in: "Because we have the freedom of the individual, freedom of movement."...  National Guardian
11/64
... far more significant for what it lacks than for what it contains ... provides blinders intended to prevent the people of America from taking a searching look at the socio-political machine which controls them. ... fiction written by adults for children.  The Minority of One, Editorial, p. 2

... The Commission announced that, immediately upon presentation of its Report to the President, it disbanded before a single question could be addressed to it regarding the contents of the Report.

History may record that act as the Commission's wisest decision.  The Warren Report: A First Glance, Mark Lane, p. 6

11/7/64
As Others See Us.  Foreign press reaction to the Warren Report. Saturday Review, p. 35

11/18/64
New York Daily News says J. Edgar Hoover accused Warren Commission of unfair report about FBI when it criticized it for failing to notify Secret Service about Oswald.  AP, New York Daily News

11/30/64
An account of J. Edgar Hoover's unprecedented press conference with women reporters.  Verbatim notes.

... Toward the end of the press conference, Hoover was asked what he thought of the Warren Commission report.  ... and its criticisms of the FBI.

"President Johnson, upon his return from Dallas, asked me to take over the investigation," Hoover said, "which we did.  My only comment about that report is that it isn't a fair report as far as the FBI is concerned.  It is beyond doubt the most classic example of Monday morning quarterbacking I have ever read.  …" Newsweek, Off Hoover's Chest, p. 29

12/64
... It is my conclusion that the same bullet could not have hit both Kennedy and Connally was the Warren Commission claimed.  You can see this yourself in the picture in exhibit 893, pare 102.  Note that the shot would have gone through the jump seat and hit Connally in the buttocks:  Yet the Commission state that there were no holes in the car and that Connally was hit so high that the bullet exited by his nipple.  ...  I infer that a plot exists and that high people are involved.  The Minority of One, p. 42, Letter to the Editor from an anonymous physicist, Somewhere, U.S.A.

12/64
The author originally, at the time of the assassination, believed a right wing conspiracy was responsible.  He now accepts the Warren Report verdict that there was no conspiracy, either of the left or right.  But he reviews in great detail the American climate and lists many of the factors prevailing in it which make for widespread persistence of conspiracy theories.  Encounter, Death in Dallas; Myths after Kennedy, D.W. Brogan, p. 20

12/7/64
Long account compiled from excerpts from the supplemental volumes.  Newsweek, What They Saw That Dreadful Day in Dallas, p. 25

12/13/64
Criticism by Hugh Trevor-Roper, and rebuttals. Clipped file.  London Sunday Times, New York Times, San Francisco Chronicle et al.
1/65
Details much of the evidence used against Oswald which would not have been admissible in a court of law. American Bar Association Journal, A Lawyer s Notes on the Warren Commission Report, by Alfredda Scobey [staff attorney to the Warren Commission and law assistant to the Court of Appeals of Georgia].

1/65
...  From the beginning, we have pointed out, however, that the CIA and other governmental groups t think nothing of assassinating the political leaders [and laymen as well]  of other countries.  … Why is it so important to persuade the American people that the murder of Kennedy was the isolated act of a psycho-path rather than a politically motivated act similar in nature to actions carried out in our name in Vietnam, Venezuela, the Congo, and all over the world?

Is it perhaps time, rather, to face up to the fact that the United States is no longer a privileged sanctuary from which politicians can order acts of brutality abroad without reaping sooner or later a similar harvest at home --- if not in retaliation, by avengers of the victims, then through the political acts of disgruntled accomplices or agents, who have felled out over policy or power ?  Liberation, Death of a President, by Dave Dellinger, p. 11

1-3/65
Pioneering, basic ana1ysis of Warren Report and supplements evidentiary material on the shots, trajectories and wounds, time factors and testimony -- all leading to conclusions different from those of the Report.  Liberation, 2 issues, The Warren Report?, Vincent J. Salandria.

1/2/65
Low opinion of the Warren Commission index.  Saturday Review, Tradewinds column by John Rothman, editor of the New York Times Index
1/2/65
Attorney Vincent J. Salandria says he is convinced -- after analyzing the shots, trajectories and wounds that resulted ... that "this killing could not have been the work of one man firing a bolt-action rifle from the Book Depository Building." National Guardian, Attorney Vincent J. Salandria, in a six page critique of the Warren Report appearing in the January issue of Liberation magazine

1/4/65
J. Lee Rankin, replying to Salandria's criticism of the Warren Report, said "there was no credible evidence" to support a theory that more than three shots had been fired during the assassination of President Kennedy.  New York Times, San Francisco Chronicle 

1/8/65
Dallas - Joe Tonahill … said yesterday he has found "shocking inconsistencies" between testimony given at the [Ruby] trial and testimony given the Warren Commission.  He declined to be specific.

... Tonahill said he will use "new discoveries" found in the 26-volume Warren report in his appeal this spring.  San Francisco Chronicle (AP)

1/11/65
Staff lawyer Alfredda Scobey, in current American Bar Association Journal, lists points of evidence Warren Report used against Oswald which would not, have been admitted in a court trial.  New York Times, Austin C. Wehrwein, Chicago

2/65
"Unsatisfactory, Suspect and Inadmissible." Atlas, The Slovenly Warren Report, by Hugh Trevor-Roper, p. 115, from the Sunday Times, London, by permission, Los Angeles Times Syndicate
2/65
In the language of George Orwell, the Kennedy assassination as a political phenomenon is now an "unfact" and anyone who -questions this highly questionable hypothesis is an "unperson.”  … The Minority of One, Letter to the Editor, p. 22

2/65
Reviews of Oswald, Assassin or Fall Guy, by Joachim Joesten, and Who Killed Kennedy, by Thomas G. Buchanan.

Review seeks to destroy both books, but in so doing concedes Warren Report failed to clear up a number of points satisfactorily.  National Review, Clearing the Air, by Stefan T. Possony, p. 113

3/65
A long, smoothly written and exhaustive analysis of the report as of the date.  Brilliant and witty in its insights into Commission methods and stupidities.  It defers to conclusions supported by what seem to be a mountain of factual evidence, but:

The Commission's talc was one of exorcism. ...

I don't for a minute imply that these respectable editors, scholars and Commissioners intend to conceal anything.  Merely that this is the effect of their labors. …  Esquire, A Critique of the Warren Report, Dwight MacDonald, p. 59

3/65
Dwight MacDonald argues the mountain of evidence makes the report believable in spite of the Commission's stupidities.

... Partisanship does infect the Report, however, and it won't do to pretend otherwise.  In two ways. The Prosecutor's Brief: accepting or rejecting testimony according to how it fits into what the Commissioners want to prove.  And The Establishment Syndrome: the reflexive instinct of people in office to trust other officials more than outsiders, and to gloss over their mistakes.

... "Probative" is one of its most useful euphemisms : it means the testimony doesn't stand up by itself but with all the other testimony in the same direction, it’ll do.  …  Esquire, A Critique of the Warren Report, by Dwight MacDonald, p. 59

3/65
... Now that ... Mr. Salandria and others have begun to expose it to public scrutiny -- it seems impossible that the Commission could have expected to get away with it in the long run, but the same could be said in retrospect of most of the egregious miscalculations of history.  One hesitates to speculate whether the Commission found its self trapped and saw not other way out, or whether it was content to perform a mere holding operation, convinced that time was of the essence and that most Americans would judge charitably on the theory that the Commission's actions helped save American prestige and preserve American morale during an emergency, much as they have tended to exonerate Harry Truman for the atom bombing of Hiroshima and Nagasaki on the theory that he save American lives and strengthened America's power position vis-a-vis the Russians.  In any event, it is already a not very well kept secret that the Warren Report will not stand up to scientific analysis and objective inquiry, and the process of exposing its failings is well under way.  … Liberation, Editorial by Dave Delllinger, The Warren Report --?, p. 3

3/65
Relatively uncritical acceptance by an eminent jurist who shows no sign of any inclination to do otherwise.

"It is a monumental work.  Even after taking into account the quality and quantity of the staff which assisted the Commission and the resources which it had at its command, its production within ten months is an outstanding achievement.  The mass of material is superbly organized.  The structure is clear.  Each fact is to be found in its proper place to sustain each conclusion.  The minor conclusions support the major, and on the major the verdict rests."  The Atlantic, Death of a President: The Established Facts, p. 112, by Lord Devlin, British Lord of Appeals and Justice of the high Court, King's Bench Division, from 1948-1960.

3/15/65
Conspiracy theories in Europe.  New York Times, London

3/26/65
Dr. Maier Tuchler of Phoenix, AZ, says he appalled at Warren Commission's conclusions about Oswald without the benefit of trained profession thinking.  New York Times, Chicago, UPI
4/65
An exploration of evidence in the Warren Report and supplements pointing toward Ruby's connections with Dallas police and officials, big time gamblers, narcotics, anti- Castro Cubans and rackets.

Note important correction on p. 11 from May issue.

... It has been suggested that the United States Government find a way to compel Ruby to talk; it might be more precisely relevant to suggest that public opinion compel the Government to permit Ruby to talk.  ...  The Minority of One, Who is Jack Ruby?, Mark Lane, p. 8

5/65
The fact that the Chief Justice of the United States presided, that all the evidence has been published, and that nothing was found which could support even the possibilities of a conspiracy, provided a complete answer to any suspicions.  New York University Law Review, Arthur L. Goodhart, p. 498

5/65
Author quotes from book by Hans Habe [Der Tod in Texas: Eine amerikanische Tragedie, 1964]:

"We know already at this moment, that the Warren Report will not stand history.  Not that the Report is false, it is insufficient; instead of completeness it offers copious circumstantialities.  It contains neither lies nor half truths - which are identical with lies - but only the half of the truth.  A half truth will nearly always be spoken with bad intent: the half of the truth means that someone has stopped at a certain line behind which lies the truth, a line that must be stepped across, to reach the whole of the truth." New York University Law Review, Did Lee Harvey Oswald act without help?, J. M. van Bemmelen

5/65
... many discrepancies ... between the official findings and the raw evidence and testimony have taught me that it is folly to accept on trust even the factual statements in the Warren Report. ... The Minority of One, Letter to the Editor, Sylvia Meagher, [complied The Index to the Warren Report, 1966] NY, p. 31

5/27/65
Walter D. Craig, defends findings and methods of Warren Commission. AP San Juan, Puerto Rico

6/66
From letter to the editor, signed Marguerite Oswald:

... There is no doubt in my mind that the judgment as brought in by the seven commission members - "lone assassin" - will be overruled.

... In my opinion it was un-American of the seven Commission members not to include the words "alleged" or "accused."  The Minority of One, p. 29

6/65
Letter to editor questioning certain conclusions of the Warren Report on basis of its own evidence. Popular Science
10/65
Unanswered Questions about President Kennedy's Assassination, by Sylvan Fox; Award Books; publication 10/65  [See New York Times, 6/5/66.]

10/65
Quotes Sauvage as saying “it is logically untenable, legally indefensible and morally unacceptable to assert that Lee Harvey Oswald was the assassin of President Kennedy.

Sauvage methodically develops evidence that one or more other persons were posing as Oswald prior to the assassination, and the Warren Commission chose to overlook this and did not investigate it properly.  Atlas, review of L'Affaire Oswald, by Leo Sauvage , Les Editions de Minuit, Paris

11/22/65
The writer takes the eight charges against Oswald, shows that four are irrelevant if not dubious, and demolishes the other four with the Report's own evidence.  The New Leader, The Warren Commission's Case Against Oswald, by Leo Sauvage, p. 16.

12/20/65
An analysis of the procedures of the Warren Commission, the evidence it used, the witnesses it accepted etc.

… Certainly there is reason to wonder who could make the better case: the Warren Commission against Lee Harvey Oswald, or Lee Harvey Oswald against the Warren Commission.  The New Leader, Oswald's case against the Warren Commission, by Leo Sauvage, p. 5

12/23/65
Commentary based largely on two books, L'Affaire. Oswald, by Leo Sauvage, and The Unanswered Questions about 'resident Kennedy's Assassination, by Sylvan. Fox.

Discerns two deeply disturbing thoughts -- that there was a conspiracy to kill JFK and that some of the plotters are still at large, and that there is another conspiracy to cover up, to hide the facts, and prevent the American people from knowing the truth. KPFA, Berkeley, Marshall Windmiller

3/66
Outlines how Warren Report has evolved from unchallengeable expression of the taboo about political assassinations to the point where the 26 volumes are being used as evidence against the Report itself.  The Minority of One, Editorial, Dallas Revisited, p. 5

4/66
Concludes at least one more assassin involved, and postulates a minimum of five bullets.

Discloses declassification of FBI 4-volume report and fact it differs from Warren Report on JFK back wound and in saying CE399 fell out of JFK's back.

Demands release of all wound-ballistics test bullets, autopsy X-rays and photographs, stills of Betzner, Muchmore and Nix motion pictures, missing Zapruder frames 208-211, and all FBI data on the shooting.

Quotes Specter as telling Philadelphia Bar Association on 10/28/64, that "The people are going to have to rely on the conclusions [that have been drawn] and the stature of the men on the Commission."

Says specter also revealed then that FBI had concluded Connally hit was a separate shot and took a large share of the credit for the double hit theory.  The Minority of One, The Separate Connally Shot by Vincent J. Salandria.  2nd of 2 articles, 1st in 3/66 issue.

5/9/66
Whitewash, by Harold Weisberg; published privately; publication date, 5/9/66.

5/28/66 et seq.
Contradiction between Warren Report and FBI report on JFK's back wound, see Book reviews of:

Inquest, by Edward Jay Epstein

Whitewash, by Harold Weisberg

Rush to Judgment, by Mark Lane

[Also see also Vincent J. Salandria, Minority of One, 4/66

6/66
The Warren Report is often wrong, full of unchallenged contradictions in witness testimony, and based on a close-minded approach.

For these reasons there is no doubt in my mind t that the judgment as brought in by the seven commission members -- "lone assassin" -- will be overruled.

To believe otherwise would be to disbelieve in America, reason and justice.

Also I would like to stag that in my opinion it was un-American of the seven Commission members not to include the words "alleged" or "accused."

You will note that my son, Lee Harvey Oswald never received his Constitutional right of a trial by jury.  Fort Worth, TX,  Marguerite C. Oswald, Mother of Lee Harvey Oswald,  Letter to the Editor, The Minority of One, p 29

6/5/66
Reaction of FBI ["the bureau declines comment"], J. Lee Rankin, Norman Redlich and Arlen Specter to attack on single bullet hypothesis by Epstein, Weisberg. New York Times, Peter Kihss

See also Newsweek, 6/13/66; replies by anonymous members of Commission staff. June 5, 1966 -
Warren Report - comment (filed Books, Epstein, Weisberg.)

6/13/66
On reaction to Epstein's book by members of Commission staff:

The accounting, in short, left the staff alumni hopping made.  "Everyone's yelling 'misquote'," said one; several protested to the publisher, and one dashed off an angry letter ["Frankly, I am appalled by the inaccuracies of the book ... "] to Epstein's thesis adviser, Cornell’s Andrew Hacker.

6/13/66
On reaction to Epstein's book by members of Commission staff:

Several denied that [Specter's] growing commitment to the single-bullet hypothesis had foreclosed any meaningful investigation of the two-gun alternative.  "We had kept an open mind on the two-assassins theory throughout that phase of the investigation," Specter himself said, "but there was convincing evidence against it."

... "There is not one shred of evidence, not a single hard fact, in the 26 volumes of the record or in the additional material at the Archives, that demonstrates there was more than one assassin," a member of the commission staff said.  "But there will always be loose ends.  You could review that record and prove Joe Stalin did it if you wanted to.  Nothing will ever kill the morbid curiosity."  Newsweek
6/13/66
The Warren Commission Report: I Some unanswered questions, The Nation, Fred J. Cook

6/13/66
All of this emphasizes the crucial importance of determining whether the commission's conclusion that the first shot wounded both the President and Governor Connally is tenable.  The Zapruder film record and the testimony of Governor Connally and his wife say it is not.  Furthermore, not a single eyewitness the commission heard saw the action in the way that the commission decided it had happened.

All without exception, were convinced that the President and Governor Connally were felled by two separate, wounding shots. The Nation, Fred J. Cook, p. 710

6/13/66
Detailed discussion of firing tests made of the Carcano by FBI and Army Ballistics Research Laboratory.

... On this basis, Oswald would have accomplished something beyond the capacity of the fastest trigger fingers the commission could find.

... The investigation in Dallas had left the commission with just one suspect, Lee Harvey Oswald.  And the commission, it would seem, lacking other evidence, decided that Oswald and his capabilities had to fit the case, ignoring the alternate conclusion that, if they simply would not fit, there had to be another explanation.

6/13/66
... Advance copies of the Epstein book were barely in circulation last week when Commission staffers mounted a point-by point" defense. ... Actually, one top-ranking staffer said, the autopsy report and photos went to the Secret Service, not the FBI.  The FBI version was not an autopsy report at all but hardly more than hearsay: it came from two agents who watched part of the autopsy, heard the doctors talk of their difficulty in tracing the bullet’s path, and dashed out to phone in their incomplete report of a "back" wound.  The doctors, meanwhile, continued probing, found evidence that the bullet had passed through the President's neck and said so in their official report.  One staff higher-up who saw that report on 12/20 - months before the single-shot theory was even advanced - now says flatly: "It was identical with the one in the Warren Report."

6/13/66
As a Marine recruit, Oswald had received intensive training in all forms of small-arms fire.  Twice he was tested and rated on a rifle range. ...  In May, 1959, in his second test, ... his ... rating indicated he was "a rather poor shot," according to testimony of Lt. Colonel A.G. Folsom, Jr., head of the records branch of the U. S. Marine Corps.

One of the most striking features of the Commission's final report is the legerdemain by which this "rather poor shot" is converted into a superb marksman.  This transformation was performed with the assistance of Major Eugene D. Anderson, Marine Corps marksmanship expert. ...  Considering all these factors, said, the major, "... As compared to a civilian who had not received this intensive training, he would be considered a good to excellent shot.”  In other words, if you compared Oswald with a civilian who had never been trained to shoot, Oswald. would look pretty good - and so, the Commission implied, the "rather poor shot" was really an "excellent" one.  The Nation, Fred J. Cook, p. 712

6/20/66
The Warren Commission Report: II Testimony of the eyewitnesses, The Nation, Fred J. Cook, p. 737

6/20/66
Questions Commission's "one-shot-multiple-wound thesis."  Agrees Oswald fired from TSBD, out "in view of all the evidence that there had to be a second gunman, one cannot completely dismiss the possibility that Oswald may indeed have been double-crossed so that other, more important men might go free."  The Nation, Fred J. Cook, p. 737

6/20/66
... the absence of rules and precedents to guide it [the Warren Commission] was of minor important, I would even say of no importance at all, compared to the presence of political preoccupations --- or prejudices – to dictate each of its steps …

... Indeed, Liebeler's reason for protesting against Redlich's text of Chapter IV was, according to the warning Epstein says figured in the memorandum, that such methods "could seriously affect the integrity and credibility of the entire report."  There is therefore still no consideration of truth or justice; only of public relations. ... The New Leader, The Duality of the Warren Report, Leo Sauvage. P. 24, review of Inquest, by Epstein
6/20/66
Washington, [6/18] - The :National Commission on Food Marketing, which will recommend sweeping regulations of the food industry, has been accused of reaching a verdict without having developed supporting evidence.

A six-member minority of the 15-member commission [has] filed separate views for President Johnson and Congress.  [One of the six is Senator Roman L. Hruska, R-NE]

... "A strangely inverted procedure was imposed by the majority to develop the 'conclusions' and report," Senator Hruska wrote.

First, he said, recommendations, later renamed 'conclusions,' were voted.

"Next the report was contrived to give the 'conclusions' credibility," he said.  "Thereafter - weeks later - staff documents were completed, from which the 'conclusions' and the report purport to have been drawn.

"The conclusions, therefore, could as well have been formulated before the Commission met."   New York Times, William M. Blair  [See this file late 8/66 - Fred Goerner]

6/25/66
... Epstein does a scalpel job on the Warren Report.  Weisberg, a Former Senate investigator, attacks more like a Marine with a machine gun.  … The Warren Report may now have been shot to death and require a full autopsy. The New Republic, What Did Happen in Dallas, Alex Campbell, Review of Epstein's Inquest and Weisberg's Whitewash
6/29/66
Inquest, by Edward Jay Epstein; Viking Press; pub. date, 6/29/66.

For attendance record of Commission members, number of hearings by Commission, number of witnesses testifying before Commission - see p. 105 to p. 111.

7/1/66
Story from Israel, on Earl Warren's arrival to dedicate memorial to President Kennedy.  Fifteen minutes after his arrival he was asked to comment on Epstein's book, and on the commission's findings.  His reply basically was that the commission had done "the best we could", repeated three times.  New York Times, James Feron

7/3/66
Comment on Warren Report in review of books by Edward Jay Epstein and Harold Weisberg.  New York Times Book review section, Fred Graham

7/3/66
Dualism of purpose: explicit, "to ascertain, evaluate and report" and implicit, "to show the world that America is not a banana republic ..."

"The two purposes," Epstein writes, were compatible so long as the damaging rumors were untrue.  But what if a rumor damaging to the national interest proved to be true?  The commission's explicit purpose would dictate that the rumor be dispelled regardless of the fact that it was true.  In a conflict of this sort, one of the commission's purposes would emerge as dominant."  LA Times, Robert R. Kirsch, review of Inquest, by Epstein.

7/5/66
Account of a Joe Dolan show on KEWB, Oakland, where Hal Verb, openly cited Weisberg's Whitewash and asserted there were two assassins and that no evidence to show the first shot came from the TSBD.  Dolan then put through a call to Weisberg in Maryland and kept him on the line for an hour and a half.  The Berkeley Barb
7/6/66
... The very nature of the commission and its investigators [eminent and therefore involved with other duties and, commitments], the hurried circumstances under which it worked [Mr. Epstein documents immense pressures to complete the report and get it out before the elections] and the expectations the country had of it [for a logical solution, without loose ends, without gnawing doubts], all militated, Mr. Epstein says, not for establishment of actual and probably imperfect truth, but for the establishment of something quite different, "political truth."

... In short, Inquest represents what must now be termed a new and preliminary investigation into the assassination of President Kennedy - an investigation, it should be realized, that may never yield a fully satisfactory solution.

A Pandora's box, perhaps, but there it is - it has been opened.  New York Times, Eliot Tremont-Smith, review of Inquest, by Epstein.

7/12/66
On FBI reports of 12/9/63 and 1/13/64:

Says an official FBI spokesman: "It is completely contrary to the facts to indicate that the FBI and the Commission are in opposition on the findings of the Commission.  Our first reports were merely to chart a course and were not designed to be conclusive.  It is entirely possible that Humes's autopsy report did not get into the hands of the FBI until later, and so our initial reports did not reflect the doctors' decision."  Look, Fletcher Knebel, p. 71

7/12/66
Quotes Allen Dulles: "If they've found another assassin, let them name names and produce their evidence."  Look, Fletcher Knebel, p. 72

7/24/66
At the heart of Epstein's analysis is what he rightly calls the threshold question: Was Oswald the only assassin?  ... [Epstein] says that the conclusion Oswald acted alone rests on two assumptions.  The first is that all relevant evidence was brought before the Commission.  The second is that all evidence was exhaustively analyzed, all alternatives were thoroughly explored, and all possibilities were investigated and tested to the limit of human capacity.  He claims that neither of these assumptions is true.  Washington Post, Richard N. Goodwin

7/24/66
Richard N. Goodwin, former assistant special counsel to President Kennedy, suggested yesterday that an independent group should determine whether the Warren Commission investigation of the President's assassination was inadequate and defective.

Goodwin made the suggestion in a review he wrote of the book Inquest by M and Jay Epstein [which was published in Book Week, Washington Post.]  San Francisco Examiner UPI, New York

7/28/66
… My reconstruction [write two assassins -- one on the knoll and one on the 6th floor, plus Oswald as a decoy] is, of course, no more than a possibility, but unlike the Commission theory, it fits much of the known data, and requires fewer miracles or highly unlikely events.  Since second Oswald was an excellent shot, my theory makes the skillful marksmanship possible.  By having two assassins, this theory fits the testimony of the majority of the observers that at least the first shot came from the knoll.  The theory does not require the dismissal of all of the people who saw second Oswald as mistaken, no matter how much corroboration they have.  The theory accounts for bullet No. 399 [planted] and its role, and it offers some explanation for the Tippit affair. ...  The New York Review of Books, The Second Oswald: the case for a conspiracy theory, Richard H. Popkin, p. 11.

7/29/66
…  "By its very composition the Commission was almost certain to produce an inadequate report.  The members all reached their rank and status in the U.S. by closing doors, eliminating doubts, shoring up the American mythology.  The Commission had a political job to do, to establish one more or less plausible version of the assassination events as an official 'truth'.  ...  If the Warren Commissioners are exposed as merely hapless dupes, other doubts about American history over the last two decades become more pertinent.  Was the Rosenberg case also a fraud?  The FBI's role then was every bit as curious as it is in the Oswald business.  Was the whole U.S. position on the origins of the cold war fraudulent?  John McCloy and Allen Dulles had the same job in feeding the national mythology then as they did by 'wiping out' the 'dirty rumors' in the assassination investigation and preventing 'damage' to shining images."  New Statesman [London], Andrew Kopkind

7-8/66
...  [Inquest] contains new data sufficient for thoughtful people to become convinced that the lone-assassin claim of the Warren Commission is untenable.  … Americans have grown quite comfortable with the lullaby quality of the Warren Report; they are not going to welcome attempts to undermine their equilibrium, such as it is.  … truth is the least sought commodity in our society.  Unless it serves an advantage, it is deemed less desirable than seemingly advantageous falsehood.  ...Thus, President Kennedy is buried not only under a heap of soil but also under an impregnable layer of moral callousness of the society that hailed him as Chief and that grieved for his untimely end.  The Minority of One, Editorial, The Relevance of an Inquest, p. 8, [in same issue as Sylvia Meagher's review of Epstein's Inquest].

7-8/66
... he has just shot down the Warren Report for all time, and with it a number of eminent reputations.  The "amateurs" and "mischief-makers" who have, tried to warn a deaf and complacent public that Lee Harvey Oswald was not a "lone assassin" and that the Warren Report was not a honest document have been vindicated.

... The Commission may have succeeded temporarily in persuading the world that America was not a banana republic where a government had been changed by conspiracy.  Epstein has now provided reason to wonder if we are not something worst: a country where the government can be changed by conspiracy and where illustrious men stand ready to cover up the truth. The Minority of One, On Closing Doors, Not Opening them or, The Limits of the Warren Investigation, by Sylvia Meagher. Review of Epstein's Inquest
7-8/66
... In sum, Epstein demonstrates conclusively that the Commission had in its hands strong evidence that Oswald was not a lone assassin [indeed, there were also indications of a calculated long-term effort to impersonate and incriminate Oswald] which the Commission never confronted.  Evidence in Oswald's favor, or incompatible with the official hypothesis, was misrepresented, ignored, or suppressed; and the Commission proceeded undeviatingly with its mission - the establishment of what; Epstein terms "political truth."  The Minority of One, Sylvia Meagher [Review of Epstein, Inquest], p. 30.

7-8/66
Specter inherited the almost-insoluble problem of reconciling the medical, autopsy, film, and ballistics evidence with the "working hypothesis" that all the shots had been fired by Lee Harvey Oswald from the sixth floor of the Depository in a span of about five and a half seconds.

His resourceful answer was that the President and the Governor had been hit by the same bullet, and that a "delayed reaction" by the Governor [for which he was unable to obtain an iota of supporting medical testimony] accounted for the appearance of a later shot.  He announced in advance that he would develop evidence that a bullet found at Parkland Hospital, first thought to have come from the President's stretcher, actually had come from the Governor's.  [The single-missile theory was not viable without such evidence, since a bullet which had passed through the President's neck and struck the Governor could not, in the natural course of events, find its way to the President's stretcher.]  When Specter later went to Dallas and tried to elicit the promised evidence, he failed.  But he maintained the single-missile theory just as if he had succeeded. The Minority of One, Sylvia Meagher [Review of Epstein, Inquest], p. 31.

7-8/66
... The casual reader of the Warren Report may take away the impression that the Commission concluded that one bullet had struck both men and that the experts had supported that finding.  Neither statement is true.  The Report is worded cunningly so as to create such an impression, distorting or omitting entirely what the experts had really said.  Not one of them endorsed the single-missile theory.  
The most that could be wrung from them was that it was conceivable or possible; some said outright that it was inconceivable.  But the Report so skillfully employs half-truths, or even literal truths, in order to mislead the reader, that the public has teen completely bamboozled about the merit of the single-missile theory. The Minority of One, Sylvia Meagher [Review of Epstein, Inquest], p. 31.

7-8/66
... Epstein draws a vivid picture of the anguish that attended the effort to compose a record in which the evidence constantly had to be harmonized with a fixed hypothesis which it contradicted rather than substantiated. The Minority of One, Sylvia Meagher [Review of Epstein, Inquest], p. 32.

8/66
... the Commission's conclusion that President Kennedy was felled by a single assassin was not supported by a single assassin was not supported by the evidence.  It was, in fact, contradicted by it …

The article [by Gaeton Fonzi] on Specter, p. 38, argues that the Commission did not produce the truth, and that Arlen Specter probably 'mows it.  It details area after area where he concedes holes in the supporting evidence, admits contrary evidence was ignored, and still resolutely supports the commission s findings.  Excellent, detailed discussion of the principal areas of doubt and controversy.

Near the beginning is a caustic list of criticisms of the Commission’s approach and methods, based partly on interviews with Specter.  Greater Philadelphia, editorial [with article, The Warren Commission, the Truth, and Arlen Specter

8/1/66
Senator Edward M. Kennedy said today that although he had not read the Warren Commission Report he was convinced Lee Harvey Oswald alone assassinated President Kennedy. New York Times UPI Washington

8/1/66
Washington, 7/31 - Senator Edward M. Kennedy said today that although he had not read the Warren Commission Report he was convinced Lee Harvey Oswald alone assassinated President Kennedy.

The 34-year-old Massachusetts Democrat said:

"I never read the Warren Commission Report. However, I am satisfied that it represents at least conclusively the results which I believe are accurate.  I have not read it.  And I do not intend to do so."  New York Times [UPI]

[Also see, Warren Commission, 6/29/64, and Warren Report, Comment, 9/28/64.]

8/10/66
Epstein:  Well, quite a lot was not included in the report.  The whole problem of a possible second assassin wasn't included in the report … they glossed over a great deal that wasn't in the report...  If this report was to be a report of all the facts, so there should be no more doubts whatsoever, and the whole truth about the Kennedy assassination, they should have said that there was a contradiction between the FBI and the final autopsy report, and that they had not seen the photographs to resolve it, and they could also have said that they believed the autopsy doctors.  Interview of Epstein by Elsa Knight Thompson and Frank Millspaugh, WBAI, New York [no date], rebroadcast by KPFA, Berkeley.

8/13/66
Comment on Warren Commission, in review of Inquest, by Edward Jay Epstein.  San Francisco Chronicle, from The London Observer, Anthony Howard

8/13/66
[Review of Epstein book.]

One young staff member trying to open up a new line of inquiry was brusquely told by the chief counsel: "At this stage we are trying to close doors, not open them."  …

Of course there were difficulties in the [one-bullet] theory …  But the Commission lawyers decided that they had no alternative but to ride roughshod over them.  The reason was obvious.  "To say that they were hit by separate bullets," one of them blurted out at the time, "is synonymous with saying that there were two assassins."

Incredibly, it was precisely this issue that the Warren Commission failed to confront.  San Francisco Chronicle, from The London Observer, Anthony Howard

8/13/66
Review of Rush to Judgment.

... Concluding his summation of the Warren Report, Lane wrote, "Hearsay evidence was freely admitted, while crucial  eyewitness testimony was excluded.  Opinions were sought and solemnly published while important facts were rejected, distorted or ignored.  Dubious scientific tests were said to have proves: that which no authentic test could do ...  Those few [witnesses] who challenged the Government's case were often harassed and transformed for the time being into defendants ...  The secrecy which prevailed at the hearings was extended, in respect to many important details, for another 75 years."

All this is emphatically denied by Congressman Gerald R. Ford ...

"The conclusions of the Warren Commission were valid when published and they are valid today," he said.  "There is no new evidence that I am familiar with.  Speculation, yes - but no new evidence."

Countering Lane’s contention that the Commission had pre-judged Oswald's guilt and then set out to prove it, Ford said "That's just not a fact.  I know of nothing that deviated from our basic mission- to find the truth."  AP, Relman Morin

8/14/66
Louis Nizer, in his preface to The Warren Report, said that thanks to the Report the issues surrounding President Kennedy's assassination: had been closed and that only "neurotics" would henceforth refuse to accept this last word on the national tragedy.  San Francisco Examiner, Donald Stanley

8/16/66
Had Oswald lived and gone to trial it is questionable if even a Dallas court could have found him guilty on the same evidence that was employed to indict him as the murderer in the Warren Report.  San Francisco Examiner. Bob Considine

8/21/66
Asked about mounting criticism of Warren Report, said he traveled a great deal in other parts of the world and had encountered almost universal disagreement abroad with the conclusions of the Warren Commission, out the critics focused on "miniscule details".  He himself accepted the Commission's conclusions.  Had known Mr. Warren all his adult life and could not believe he would be a party to deceiving the American people.

Asked about growing demands for examination of autopsy photographs and X-rays, said "I am not going to get into that detail."  Pierre Salinger, press secretary, JFK, on Face the Nation, KCBS
8/22/66
Meanwhile, if you want to become an expert on the assassination yourself, read the Lane book for a virtuoso performance by a lawyer with a weak case.  Read the Epstein book for an inside look at Government men trying to muddle through.  And read the Warren Report, still the best account of the assassination of the president.  Wall Street Journal, Arlen J. Large

8/22/66
...  So the case was fertilized and refertilized -- it grew into a thicket.  And the Commission was obliged to cut a tidy path through the thicket and this laid the ground for future scandals and disasters out of measure.

If in the next few years some new kind of commission does not establish in hard and satisfactory fashion the known and unknown boundaries of the case, then the way is open to a series of surrealistic political machinations.  On that unhappy - let us hope impossible - day when America becomes a totalitarian government of Left, Center, or Right, the materials are now at hand for a series of trials of high government figures ... for the wealth of contradictory evidence now upon us from the rot-pile of Dallas permits any interpretation, any neat little path, to be cut through the thicket.  From any direction to any direction.  The Right may now convict the Left.  The Left may now stifle the Right. The Center may eat them both.  The cannibal's pure totalitarianism is near.  Book Week, Norman Mailer

Late 8/66
Goerner writes of difficulties in obtaining information from Government sources [CIA, State Department, Navy, etc.] in "writing his book, The Search for Amelia Earhart.  Most files classified is "Government's desire to cloak embarrassments of the past."  San Francisco Chronicle, This World, Fred Goerner

[See Warren  Report, Comments, 6/20/66, New York Times, William M. Blair

9/1/66
William Buckley, Jr., editor of ... National Review, said yesterday that a foundation of which he is an official is in the process of authorizing a $2,000 grant to study the adequacy of the Warren Commission's report on the assassination of President Kennedy.

Mr. Buckley said the organization was the Historical Research Foundation, set up by [the late] Alfred Kohlberg ...

... "I think the presumptions are with the Warren Commission's report, but I think as a public matter for the sake of the public tranquillity" there should be a commission that is not partial to the report.  New York Times
9/6/66
"An examination of the contradictions and omissions of the Warren Report."  The Oswald Affair, Leo Sauvage

9/13/66
… Conceding that the chief justice is not engaged in a popularity contest, it must be conceded also the t his prestige would be much damaged by identification with an embarrassing folly, such as a superficial report on a Presidential assassination.  San Mateo Times, UPI, Lyle Wilson, Doubt About Warren Report Damages Prestige of Court.
9/15/66
There is something ugly and monstrous moving around in America … [conspiracy theories tending to converge on LBJ] ... More importantly, the existence of such a theory demands that the entire assassination be once again thrown open to investigation.  In their drive toward calm and consensus, the politicians on the Commission played loosely with the details of truth.  Now we end up with murderous theories.  No country can exist with theories like this becoming general.  And the Warren Commission, unfortunately, has not done enough to settle them.  New York Post, Pete Hamill, The Assassination
9/16/66
… Despite all the critics' agonizing hours of research, not one has produced a single significant bit of evidence to show that anyone but Lee Harvey Oswald was the killer, or that he was involved in any way at-tit in a conspiracy with anyone else.  Time, shotgun review of The Oswald Affair, Inquest, The Second Oswald, Rush to Judgment, p. 54

9/30/66
… The American public has been duped by this august body and the novel of half-truths and suppressed conclusions it presented.  If half of the points that Mark Lane brings up in his book Rush to Judgement are valid questions and criticisms about the investigation, then the American public needs to take another look at the findings of the Warren Commission.  Time, Letter to the Editor, Clark E. McGoon, Riverside, CA, p. 16

9/30/66
Rep. Theodore R. Kupfermar asked Congress Wednesday [9/28] to conduct its own investigation into the adequacy of the Warren Report …

Citing recent books and articles critical of the report, the Manhattan Republican called for the creation of a 10-member Senate/House committee to review the Warren Commission's work.

The committee, composed of five members from each House, would first determine whether there is a need to so beyond the Warren Commission's investigation.  This would be based on a review of the Commission's findings and also the critical writings and outside data.   New York Times Washington [9/28]
Fall 66
Portion of discussion of one-bullet theory [at approximately 1390’], Wesley J. Liebeler, Sylvia Meagher

Liebeler:  The fact that the Report states that all the evidence supports the one-bullet theory is simply not correct.  The Report is wrong in that respect, and there is no doubt about it …

Meagher:  That’s quite an admission.

Liebeler:  That’s quite an admission?

Meagher:  Yes.

Liebeler:  Well, why is that quite an admission?

Meagher: What parts shall we rely upon?

Panel discussion of Warren Report, Theatre of Ideas, New York, Following transcribed from tape, No. 51-52, side I

10/5/66
"Five critics of the Warren Commission Report on the assassination ... with participate in a three-hour discussion on Channel 5 [WNEW-TV] at 9 p.m. Saturday, 11/12.

... Lane, Sauvage, Weisberg, Penn Jones, Jacob Cohen, moderated by Jim Bishop ...  New York Times
10/66
Oswald's relationship with the State Department; full account of irregularities in handling of his passports, etc. ["undeviating and uninterrupted record of clerical errors and administrative options which operated invariably for the benefit of the undeserving Oswald"]; suggestion that Oswald was involved with some government agency.

... But the Commission let the matter rest.  An FBI content with the "clean bill" purportedly given Oswald by the embassy, a Passport Office prepared to accept Oswald's verbal assurance that he had not given away classified data as he threatened to do, a State Department and CIA ready to believe that the Russians were not even interested in Oswald's radar secrets - those are not the familiar agencies we know and love [or loathe, according to one's inclinations].

Allen Dulles, former head of the CIA, and the other government-seasoned members of the Commission, must have known better.

Nevertheless, the Commission as a body managed to swallow and digest a gargantuan serving of clerical error, persistent coincidence, and perverse official solicitude for a man who seemingly had forfeited all claim to protection from his government.  The Commission concluded that the cuisine was delicious, and nourishing too.  The Minority of One, Sylvia Meagher: Oswald and the State Department
10/6/66
A Texas court decision favorable to Jack Ruby "only reinforces doubts" about everything surrounding President John F. Kennedy's assassination, the Soviet Union said today.

... Izvestia did not suggest that the Ruby case proved the existence of any conspiracy ... but asked:

"Was [the decision] not because Jack Ruby, sitting in his big cell with a private shower, from time to time threatened: 'if I begin to speak, many people will get in trouble'?"  AP Moscow

10/6/66
p. 34 - Considering what is at issue, 1 think the Commission owes it to the public to answer the critics, to justify itself, and to produce the basic data of the X-rays and the [autopsy] photos.  Then, either the public will be reassured, and the critics silenced, or we will know the lengths that our supposed best investigative forces and "impartial experts" have gone to curry to the public's desire for a simple satisfying theory that one lonely alienated nut, all by himself, killed John Fitzgerald Kennedy,  New York Review of Books, Richard Popkin, in reply to letter from Curtis Crawford

10/7/66
Life's famous issue of 10/2/64, reproducing frames from the movie of the Kennedy assassination, was altered and reprinted four times [Discovered by student at University of California at Berkeley.  Life magazine’s reply to student discussed in 10/14 issue of Barb.] after it first went to press.  In the fifth version, one movie frame was substituted for another, and eleven changes were made in the alleged facts.

The result was a story which went along with the Warren Commission's "lone assassin" dictum.  The picture and wording in the first version - when the magazine first went to press on September 28 - were contradictory to the Warren commission's conclusion.  Berkeley Barb, Hal Verb

10/8/66
Texas Governor John Connally has dispelled any notions that he disagrees widely with the Warren Commission's report on the assassination of President John f. Kennedy.

"The Warren .Report is a very exhaustive, objective, detailed analysis of what occurred at Dallas," Connally said yesterday.

"I have no argument with the report," he told a news conference ....

Connally, riding, in the car with Kennedy … was wounded by a bullet the commission said must have passed through Kennedy before striking; the governor ... some sources said 'Connally was not in agreement with its findings.  … [no specific denial of his disagreement with Warren Commission’s conclusion that the same bullet hit him after passing through JFK.]  AP, 528 acs

10/10/66
Lists specific criticisms of Warren Report; discusses missing K rays and pictures. Arlen Specter deals with these criticisms in interview following this article. US News & World Report Truth about Kennedy Assassination
10/10/66
p. 45 - Commission's rebuttal.  Officials connected with the Warren Commission make these points about the recent out-pouring of critical books:

-
Basically, they represent the views of individuals - ... - who relied almost entirely on evidence developed by the Commission in the course of its 10-month inquiry. ...

-
The suggestion made in some books of "collusion" on the part of "high officials" to "cover up" the facts surrounding the President's death is based on the assumption that many people - the 7 members of the Warren Commission, the 15 lawyers and 12 administrators who served on the staff, the scores of clerks and writers and technical experts, the doctors at Bethesda Naval Hospital and Parkland Hospital in Dallas, the hundreds of investigators for the FBI, CIA, Secret Service, Internal Revenue Service, armed-forces intelligence, and other federal, State, and local agencies could be acting together in some gigantic "conspiracy" to suppress the truth.

Arlen Specter, in interview, p. 53:  You must bear in mind that as each individual, in many contexts in this investigation, saw the evidence, he saw only a limited amount of the evidence.

10/10/66
Statement by Specter: When I was asked if I would agree to talk to U.S. News and World Report on the subject of the Warren Commission's investigation of the Kennedy assassination, I decided, after considerable thought, that my answer would be "Yes" - in view of the public concern that has arisen in the wake of books on the Commission.

I am willing to answer questions which may shed light on the subject and clear up areas of misunderstanding that may exist in the public mind as a result of what has been written and widely published.

In this regard, I believe that the Commission Report itself, and certainly the 26 volumes of evidence, contain within their covers the comprehensive answers to all substantive questions.  However, it is not easy for those answers to be available to the average person, who may have read the buckshot attacks which have been forthcoming against the Commission Report.

To put some of the criticism into proper focus, I am willing to respond to questions and point out parts of the Report and areas of evidence which I consider complete answers to the so-called critics. U.S. News & World Report, Interview of Arlen Specter, Overwhelming evidence Oswald was assassin, The autopsy report, Path of the bullet, The autopsy pictures, What the surgeons said, If inquiry were reopened

10/10/66
p. 58.- Specter: When the Commission was formed, President Johnson took great pains to select Commissioners who had high standing and who were independent of the Government or the so-called bureaucracy in Washington.  When the Commission then went out to organize its staff, it did not select people who had ties or allegiances to the Government who might have been beholden to some department or another for their jobs ... every conceivable pain was taken to select people who were totally independent, which is hardly the way you set out to organize a truth-concealing commission.  …

p. 63 - Q. Did you also use any private and independent means of investigation?

Absolutely.  When it came to the question of double-check on ballistic material., there were independent experts-- brought in who had no Federal Government connections.

When it came to the question of the depths of some of the tests - such as those made by the wound-ballistics people - they were from the Army, but they were the best experts available.  So there was a wide scope of federal talent used, and substantial nonfederal talent used as well.  US News & World Report, Interview of Arlen Specter.

10/10/66
p. 59 - Q. Did the Commission ever have anyone except Oswald under suspicion as the possible perpetrator of this crime?

A. The evidence at no time indicated that there was any other perpetrator of the offense.  But I think it should be noted that the Commission, contrary to some assertions, did not start with the preconceived notion that Oswald was the assassin.  The Commission, I thing, did its utmost, and in fact, did maintain an open mind on that subject and surveyed the evidence before coming to its conclusion. US News & World Report, Interview of Arlen Specter
10/10/66
p. 59 - Q. Have you seen, in any of the critical comments on the investigation, any new evidence, beyond what was developed by the Commission?

A. There has not been a scintilla of new evidence disclosed in any of the books, to the best of my knowledge - certainly nothing that I have read, although I have not read every line of each of the books which have been written.

In the books I have seen, they are basically a taking of the Commission evidence, which was set forth bountifully, and a reconstruction in accordance with what the authors or others may have formulated to be their views on the events.

It's important to emphasize that point: that the Commission made available all this evidence because it welcomed the tree rein of inquiry and expression on this point.  It's a free country, and people may formulate their own conclusions.  But the evidence -- sifted carefully and taken as a whole – I think, forcefully supports the Warren Commission's findings and conclusions.

Q. As the district attorney of a big city, do you feel you could have successfully prosecuted the case against Oswald on the basis of evidence dug up by the Warren Commission?

A. That would have been a hard one to lose. ... I would say that, in my years of experience as an assistant district attorney and as district attorney of Philadelphia, I have never seen a case presented in a courtroom that is as convincing as is the case against Oswald where there are not numerous eyewitnesses to the crime.

The same case could not have been presented in the same form in a courtroom, because much of it would not have been admissible and the remainder would have been subject to adversary attack.  US News & World Report, Interview of Arlen Specter

10/10/66
p. 62 - Q. Did the Commission deny any witnesses the right to be heard or refuse to hear anyone claiming to have pertinent information?

A. Absolutely not.  In fact, the converse was true.  The Commission went far and wide to solicit information from every conceivable source whatsoever. US News & World Report, Interview of Arlen Specter

10/10/66
p. 63 - Q. Would you say that any cover-up of evidence in this case would mean, in effect, that a large number of reputable people were in collusion?

A. Well, I think that is the precise thrust of some of the material which has peen written - that a conspiracy of deceit goes into the upper echelons of the Commission itself, permeates its ranks, and is widespread throughout everything the Commission has done.

I thing it is preposterous to suggest that the Chief Justice or any other commissioner would conceal the truth from the American people, or that reputable federal officers would perjure themselves. US News & World Report, Interview of Arlen Specter

10/15/66
... Lane [speaking at Stanford, 10/14] … displayed a letter from FBI Director J. Edgar Hoover confirming that two key frames in motion pictures of the  assassination - were transposed before publication of the Warren Commission.

As promised, these show Mr. Kennedy slumping forward, out the correct sequence as determined y photographic experts, Lane said, shows the late President was pushed back by the impact of one gullet, which could only have been fired from in front of his limousine.  San Francisco Examiner
10/15/66
Account of Lane's speech the day before at Stanford, 'Proof –of 2 Kennedy Assassins’  … “In another six weeks, there will be very, very few people in this country who will be able to accept the central conclusions of the Warren Commission's report," he said. ...

10/16/66
A public discussion group in New York recently sought to hold a round-table discussion about the Warren Report and its conclusion that Lee Harvey Oswald was the lone assassin of John F. Kennedy.  The major difficulty for the group was in finding anyone of stature who was willing to defend the Warren Report and its findings.

That is only an example of how the atmosphere has changed in the two years since the massive report and its 26 volumes of supporting testimony and evidence were published.  …

... The point is that the Warren Commission has not; after all, even quieted public concern about who killed John F. Kennedy, or why, and even less has it presented an ironclad and unarguable case that Lee Oswald, along and without rational motive, was the assassin ....  San Francisco Chronicle, New York Times
10/18/66
The archives of the Warren Commission's investigation into the assassination of president John F. Kennedy probably will be made public before the end of the year, according to an assistant counsel to the commission.

Wesley J. Liebeler, an acting professor of law at UCLA, told a Stanford University audience yesterday that the full 26 volumes of testimony would demonstrate the thoroughness of the investigation. ...

... "I think the X-rays [made at the Kennedy autopsy] will be made public, and should be made part of the record," he declared.  … Photos of Kennedy's body ... probably should not be made public for reasons of good taste, he continued.  But he suggested that a panel of pathologists might be appointed to study them and make a public report to settle some of the questions raised by Lane and other critics who believe more than one man was involved in the slaying. ...

Liebeler conceded that it might have been possible that two sequences in a motion picture of the assassination were reversed in preparing prints for publication.  But he denied that any ulterior motive was involved.

"There's a lot of sloppy work in the Commission report," he granted. "We probably should have spent six months going over galley proofs.  It s a human report, and not perfect."  San Francisco Examiner, Mary Madison

10/18/66
...it will be a disservice to the nation if Congress is stampeded into some action without carefully weighing the substance of the attacks on the Warren Commission which have been receiving so much uncritical publicity ...

... Arlen Specter ... says, "There has not been a scintilla of new evidence disclosed in any of the books."  Is this so, or isn't it?  So far the critics have not rebutted this rebuttal.

... The recent poll showing that the American people reject, by a 3-to-2 margin, the "main thrust" of the Warren Report, has made a marked impression on Congress.  Oakland Tribune, Clayton Pritchey, Warren Report Critics have Weak Case. [copyright, Newsday, 1966]

10/18/66
"There is still the madness of crowds and popular delusion today that there was at the time of the crusades, alchemists, and witchcraft," said [Wesley] Liebeler in explaining the public's refusal to accept the report.  "Furthermore there is a credibility gap here.  A large number of people always doubt what the government tells them.  The notion that the Warren Commission suppressed the truth brings down on the commission the pent-up feelings of people who were emotionally upset."

From Stanford University News Service, 10/17/66: While the report is "not perfect," he added, "the probabilities are overwhelming" that its central findings are correct.  "The conclusions will stand well the tests of time and history."  The Stanford Daily
10/18/66
In answer to questions from the audience about the alleged doctored picture of Lee Harvey Oswald on the cover of Life magazine, "Wesley Liebeler said that photographic experts do not support the theory that the head was superimposed on the body.  In addition, they can prove that the picture came from Oswald's camera.  Liebeler said he could not explain the difference in the shadows from the nose and body.  The Stanford Daily
10/21/66
Life magazine was not the only publication caught in the act of phonying up the moving picture of the Kennedy assassination.  The report of the Warren Commission did it too and did it first.

J. Edgar Hoover has confirmed the fact that two frames of the movie are transposed as they appear in the Warren Report.  These are the most critical frames of the shooting sequence [and] by transposing the pictures, the report makes it appear that his head was knocked forward by the impact.  When they are seen in the correct time sequence, they show that his head was snapped back and to the left.

This was revealed in Berkeley 10/15 by Mark Lane [who exhibited] a letter written by Hoover to another investigator of the Kennedy killing.  The letter attributes the transposition to a "printing error."  Hoover would have us believe that after ten months' work … the two pictures constituting the most critical evidence were transposed by mistake - and the mistake just happens to result in supporting the official theory of one assassin, shooting from behind the President's car.  Berkeley Barb, Hal Verb

10/21/66
A ... four hour talk show featuring three members of the Warren Commission [unnamed] on KCBS ... 10/17 … failed to materialize.  They cancelled out just two days before their scheduled appearance on the Harve Morgan Contact program.

[A CBS producer] said he felt he was getting the run-around from the Commission.  He said he thought they would eventually appear but he was "getting tired" of arranging this particular show.  He explained that the panelists had now requested that questions be submitted in advance before they appear.  Berkeley Barb
10/22/66
Review of Lane, Epstein, Sauvage, Weisberg, Popkin, Fox.

p. 36  It is now reasonably clear that the Commission should have employed full-time, independent, non-governmental investigators and more full-time, independent, nongovernmental lawyers.  The members of the Commission probably should have devoted more time to their task and should have heard more of the testimony in full-dress formal hearings.  The entire investigation should have been further extended in time and scope. ...  Whatever the merits of the dispute between the Commission and ... Mark Lane, it is manifest that he and the other critics are on sound ground in arguing that a technique should have been evolved for admitting adversary counsel, with the right of cross-examination.  It is apparent also that some clues should have been more thoroughly followed and that certain additional witnesses should have been heard and questioned.  So too it is evident that a more complete investigation of and report on the inconsistencies in the evidence heard and the official reports submitted to the Commission were required.  Conceding the validity of these criticisms, however, does not necessarily require rejection of the Commission's conclusions.

On the other hand, did the critics meet the minimal standards required of them?  It is fair to suggest that in many respects they failed to do so.  Saturday Review, Arnold L. Fein, JFK in Dallas: the Warren Report and Its Critics
10/22/66
The writer admits many of the weaknesses of the Warren Report, but the main thrust of his argument is to criticize the critics and belittle their arguments and methods.  Its chief interest may lie in the fact that it represents Saturday Review's first participation in the controversy.

Lost in the same issue are tear sheets of letters to the editor in succeeding issues written in reaction, mostly unfavorable to Judge Fein's remarks.  Saturday Review, Arnold L. Fein, JFK in Dallas: the Warren Report and Its Critics, p. 36

10/22/66
Review of Lane, Epstein, Sauvage, Weisberg, Popkin, Fox.

p. 37  It was obvious from the outset that there were so many conflicting clues and reports it world be impossible to reconcile them all.  But this does not seem to deter our authors.  Seizing these gaps or contradictions, some of which were inevitable and many of which the Commission could have avoided or explained, each of these critics has launched an attack on the motives of the Commission, varying in intensity from the professorial tone of Edward Jay Epstein ... to the staccato drumbeat of Harold Weisberg ...  Each implies or states that the Commission assumed at the outset that Oswald alone was guilty and then set out to demonstrate or prove it.  Perhaps this is so, but these gentlemen have not made the case.  It is more easily demonstrable that it is they who have sought to prove their own predispositions.

p. 46 Nor is the Warren Commission without fault.  With respect to the inconsistencies in the doctors' autopsy reports, the FBI reports and the FBI agents' reports, the Commission had a clear duty.  Its obligation was to inquire into the inconsistencies, to question all who were involved.  It had a duty to report the facts and to include all of the reports in its own Report.  Unlike that of a jury, the function of the Commission was not merely to render a verdict of "innocent" or "guilty."  Its duty was to disclose the facts and explain its conclusions.  It failed to do so.  Saturday Review, Arnold L. Fein, JFK in Dallas: the Warren Report and Its Critics
10/22/66
Review of Lane, Epstein, Sauvage, Weisberg, Popkin, Fox.

p. 45  Why is it necessary to assume falsification and a plot?  Why cannot the third possibility, the unmentioned possibility - that Commander Humes's explanation is the truth - be accepted?  It is not even discussed, except by Popkin.  The alternatives proposed by the others involve either falsification by Humes or distortion or worse by the FBI.  ...  They do so, I suggest, because this fits more easily into their theories of conspiracy and plot.  And if there was a plot to falsify the record, is it inappropriate to ask, "Why didn't somebody tell the FBI?"  Saturday Review, Arnold L. Fein, JFK in Dallas: the Warren Report and Its Critics
10/22/66
Review of Lane, Epstein, Sauvage, Weisberg, Popkin, Fox.

p. 47  As I said at the outset, the critics also have a duty.  They have failed it.  Each of them in one way or another suggests there was a conspiracy involved.  Weisberg asserts, without any evidence in support, that the Commission "exculpated"  "Presidential assassins."  Again without credible evidence Sauvage maintains that the assassination was the product of a right-wing racist plot and that Oswald was killed as part of a Dallas police plot to prevent discovery of the first plot.  Fox finds Oswald guilty, but suggests, on the most tenuous oasis, that there was a plot in which Ruby and Oswald were involved.  Lane makes a strong defense of Oswald, points the finger at Ruby, also on a flimsy basis, and likewise suspects a conspiracy.  Lane's is the strongest case for Oswald. - He makes some telling points, vigorously and effectively.  Popkin holds that the second Oswald and a third man were the real assassins [and] concedes the known Oswald killed Patrolman Tippit. ...  Epstein's theory is that Oswald was guilty, but he implies a second assassin.

... Conspiracies have an objective.  What objective was served by the assassination of President Kennedy?  And what steps have been taken to carry it out?  Nowhere in these books is there a suggestion of an answer.  Saturday Review, Arnold L. Fein, JFK in Dallas: the Warren Report and Its Critics
10/24/66
… Panel on the Warren Report on the assassination of President John F. Kennedy, with two critical authors, Edward Jay Epstein and Mark lane, paired against two lawyers who were members of the Warren Commission counsel, Joseph A. Ball and Wesley J. Liebeler.  …AP note to editors regarding coming APME convention San Diego, 11/16-19.

10/25/66
A year ago Ramparts totally believed the Warren Report.  After a year of investigation we totally disbelieve it.  We do not accept its conclusions; we do not accept its premises; we do not accept its logic; we do not accept the facts that lead to that conclusion.  We think that the Commission, for political motivations, rushed to get out an answer to the country before the presidential election in 1964, that in the course of that they discarded any evidence whatsoever that would tend to go away from their conclusion of Oswald acting alone as the single gunman who killed the President.  San Francisco -- KGO newscast, excerpt of taped interview with Warren Hinckle, Managing editor of Ramparts magazine [the 11/66 issue of which published articles calling for reopening of investigation of the assassination]

10/25/66
Excerpt from interview of Warren Hinkle, editor of Ramparts magazine:

Hinckle: A year ago Ramparts totally believed the Warren Report.  After a year of investigation we totally disbelieve it.  We do not accept its conclusions; we do not accept its premises; we do not accept its logic; we do not accept the facts that lead to that conclusion.  KGO newscast

10/30/66
Retired Bishop James A. Pike said yesterday he has become convinced that President Kennedy's assassination involved a conspiracy and was not the work of ... Oswald alone.  ... "I too regard the conspiracy hypothesis as more credible, more plausible, than the alternative," he said.

He announced that he was joining an interfaith committee which will call on President Johnson ... to demand release of all withheld evidence.  On the committee with Pike are Edward M. Keating, Roman Catholic ... and Rabbi Abraham J. Heschel of the Jewish Theological Seminary of America in New York.  San Francisco Sunday Examiner & Chronicle

10/30/66
New York - Episcopal Bishop James A. Pike and Ramparts magazine publisher Edward L. Keating said Saturday [10/29] it is their belief the assassination of President Kennedy involved a conspiracy in which Lee Harvey Oswald played only a part.

... Keating .. and Pine announced they and Rabbi Abraham J. Heschel ... are forming a national inter-faith committee, which will call on President Johnson to release all withheld evidence in the assassination. ...  Keating said committee members will attempt to present the petition to the White House within the next 10 days.

... "If you have one bullet unaccounted for," Keating said, "the Warren Commission report goes out the window."

... Pine said that after reading the Warren Report and other material, "I too regard the conspiracy hypothesis as more credible, more plausible, than the alternative."  Sacramento Bee
10/30/66
... The USIA, pressured by the House (appropriations) committee, has now released the list of books subsidized by it during fiscal 1965.  One of the items was $1,770 for the Bantam paperback edition of The Witnesses, the New York Times' prepared editing of the 26 volumes of testimony taken by the Warren Commission ...

The Witnesses was supposedly the assessment of a respectable and objective neutral source [as seen by its introduction by Harrison Salisbury9Anthony Lewis)] followed by a representative selection from the corroborating evidence.

What does USIA subsidization of that "objectivity" to the credibility of the book? …  San Francisco Examiner, The Hidden Hand of Government in Books, Donald Stanley

11/66
Elaborate spoof on the critics. Ramparts, p. 59, Book review.  Jacob Brockman and Faye Levine.

11/66
... The responsibility for the mounting doubts, theories and confusions must therefore be placed first with the Warren Commission and now with the President who has the power to invoke a new investigation and release the necessary evidence.  …  Ramparts, editorial, p. 3: Traces the editors' initial acceptance of the Warren Report, then doubts, investigation and finally disbelief.

11/66
Jacob Cohen reaches the conclusion that the evidence bears out the principal findings of the Commission.

Editorial, by Phil Kerby, expresses more discomfort from the critics than from the Commission's methods and conclusions.  Frontier, Jacob Cohen, The Warren Commission Report and its Critics.

11/66
Salisbury, who wrote in 1964 that the Warren Report had settled matters for all time, pulls back in this obscure publication.  He says he still believes the Warren Report verdict that Oswald was the lone killer, but feels both Lane and Epstein have raised serious questions which must be answered, or at least re-examined.  But :

.... A reinvestigation, in my opinion, would not produce a single piece of important additional evidence.  Yet, even should that be true this would be as valuable a contribution as might be made toward cleaning the slate of rumor, slander, gossip and old wives' tales …  The Progressive. Who Killed President Kennedy, by Harrison Salisbury, a review of Inquest, Rush to Judgment and The Oswald Affair.

11/2/66
… In a related move, acting Attorney General Ramsey Clark ordered the seizures of thousands of items of evidence surrounding the assassination for permanent safekeeping in the archives.

Justice Department officials said both actions were taken partly to offset mounting criticism of the Warren Commission's finding that Lee Harvey Oswald, acting alone, shot the former chief executive from ambush.

Story by William J. Eaton on receipt by National Archives of autopsy photos and X-rays, and coat and shirt worn by JFK.  San Francisco Examiner from Chicago Daily News

11/2/66
Copy of prospectus, experimental college course at San Francisco State College, "A workshop on the Kennedy assassination. First session 11/2/66.  Coordinator, Hal Verb.

11/2/66
Boston - Edward Jay Epstein, author of Inquest, ... says the possibility of a second assassin "will probably be reduced to nil" by pictures released by the Kennedy family.

Epstein ... said in an interview yesterday the pictures and X-rays ... may supply conclusive proof of the Warren Commission finding that a single assassin killed the president.

“… If we now have photographic evidence that the bullet went through the President's body, this must be seen as new evidence. ... This also proves," he said, "the main point of my book - that the Warren commission failed to examine crucial evidence."  AP 832 ace

10/2/66
Columbus, OH - [Mark Lane] issued a statement criticizing government action in turning over to the Archives [the autopsy pictures any X-rays].  ... Lane contended the action "officially confirmed" that "the Warren commission failed to examine some of the most relevant and vital documents in the case."

... If the government will not permit examination of the photos and other evidence, Lane said, "I will bring a taxpayer's action in the federal court."  AP 1152 acs

11/5/66
Washington, 11/4 - President Johnson defended the Warren Commission today, declaring that the evidence supports its conclusions about the assassination of President Kennedy.

In his first public statement on the subject since the commission became the target of a series of critical books and articles, the President gave the panel high marks for its "thorough study."

In answer to a question at his news conference, Mr. Johnson said "I know of no evidence that would in any way cause any reasonable person to have a doubt about the Warren Commission, but if there is any evidence that's brought forth, I'm sure that the commission and the appropriate authorities will take action that may be justified.  "New York Times
[Transcript of questions and answer filed with story.]

11/7/66
After to years of blind adoration -- probably unprecedented in a country where conformity is not physically enforced -- American intellectuals are now discovering that something was wrong with the Warren Commission Report, and thus with the Commission itself.  The most recent manifestation of this phenomenon is a long article by Alexander Bickel of Yale in the October issue of Commentary.  It is called The Failure of the Warren Report, and one of its purposes seems to be to justify the professor's long silence. ...

...More than anything else, I think, it was the remarkable silence of men of Bickel's stature that compounded "the failure of the Warren Report." ...  The New Leader, p, 16, Leo Sauvage, Prof. Bickel and The Warren Commission.

11/13/66
Attack on critics of Warren Report.

Sample: Smith on Oswald's marksmanship and rifle, "Small boys at summer camps can do equally well on their target ranges, using .22 rifles [much less powerful than a 6.5] and no telescopic sights whatever."  LA Times, Merriman Smith

11/18/66
Account of debate, 11/17, Associated Press Managing Editors Association convention, San Diego.  Participants, Joseph A. Ball, Wesley Liebeler, Mark Lane, Edward Jay Epstein.

Partial transcript, this file.

See also APME Red Book 1966.  New York Times [AP]

11/19/66
Alistair Cooke in the Manchester Guardian Weekly:

... The Warren Commission fulfilled its second aim: to dispel a welter of alarming rumors and protect the republic.  It signally failed in its first aim: "to ascertain, evaluate, and report on" the truth deducible from the facts.
  Sooner or later, it will have to be done ...  Saturday Review, excerpts from world press

11/20/66
How is it possible that today, 36 months after the tragic event, the doubts are more virulent than ever? ...  To answer that question, it may be necessary to abandon criminology in favor of psychology - and to ponder not the merits of the case, but the nature of belief and disbelief.  San Francisco Sunday Examiner & Chronicle Joel Pimsleur on critics of Warren Report.

11/21/66
Life magazine contended in an editorial yesterday that there was "reasonable - and disturbing - doubt" that Oswald had acted alone in the assassination of President Kennedy, and it called for a new official inquiry.

The magazine put forward its view after a new examination by Governor John B. Connally, Jr. of Texas of the assassination motion picture film in Life's possession.  As a result of this examination the Governor disagreed once again with the Warren commission theory that he and President Kennedy had both been hit by a single bullet.  [Life deals with film in some detail.  11/25/66]  New York Times, Peter Kihss

11/21/66
A rejoinder to Sauvage’s 11/7/66 article on Bickel.  He fears he has annoyed Mr. Sauvage, but warns him against jumping to the conspiratorial hypothesis.  The New Leader, p19, Leo Sauvage and the Warren Commission, by Alexander M. Bickel.

His rebuttal to Bickel above, accusing him in effect of sloppy thinking, evasive argument and deceptive language.  The New Leader, As I Was Saying, by Leo Sauvage, p. 21

11/21/66
In a taped, interview with Westinghouse Broadcasting Co., Malcolm M. Kilduff [JFK press aide] declared:

"I have absolutely no doubt that . Oswald committed the act on his own and that there was no conspiracy involved, as has been insinuated in many books, and is a belief which is actually widespread in Europe."

However, Kilduff said he does disagree with the Commission's finding that [one bullet passed through JFK and Connally].

... "The Warren Commission report shows a bullet, a perfect bullet.  I have talked to ballistic experts, who say that it would not be possible for a bullet to travel through that much mass and come out in such a perfect condition."  AP A24WX 248 pes

11/22/66
… . In the interview, Kilduff dismissed as "pure garbage" published theories that question the commission's basic conclusion that Oswald alone killed Mr. Kennedy.  San Francisco Chronicle, Times Post Service
11/22/66
On third anniversary of assassination, comments by members of Warren Commission on criticism of Report:

Warren: "If I were still a district attorney and the Oswald case came into my jurisdiction, given the same evidence I could have gotten a conviction in two days and never heard about the case again."

Dulles: "I find there is nothing new or startling in this Life article - except its conclusions."

Cooper: Traveling in Europe; an associate said the senator had been saying that everything brought up in recent books and articles had been pursued and deliberated over by the commission and that there were errors in some of these writings.

Russell: Declined comment. [See AP 11/21 707pes]

FORD, Boggs, McCloy: ‘Unavailable for comment yesterday.”  New York Times, Peter Kihss

11/22/66
Washington - ... [Speaking on telephone from Fort Worth, TX, Marguerite Oswald said,] "Examined in depth, the Warren Report is often wrong, is full of unchallenged contradictions in witnesses' testimony.  The majority of official reports submitted to the commission members is a mass of errors ...

"In the words of my late son, Lee .Harvey Oswald, 'I don't know what this is all about.’"  Oakland Tribune, AP
11/22/66
In interview, S.M. Holland [standing on overpass 11/22/63] said there definitely was a shot fired from behind fence, possibly two, that four or five witnesses saw the smoke and that one saw muzzle flash.

"The way the Warren Commission published my testimony, it was kind of watered down some.  It made it seem that I wasn't really sure whether I'd heard a shot from the fence.  But I own too many guns myself, and I've done too much hunting.  I know a rifle shot when I hear one," he said.

Asked why he thought the Commission would delete or alter any of his testimony, Holland replied: "Well, obviously, what I had to say pretty seriously conflicted with their official version."

AP, Tom Johnson: Holland said that to his knowledge none of the other railroad employees with him that day [were] interviewed by the commission.  "I feel sure they all would corroborate what I say," he said.

He added that he is certain there were at least four shots fired, and perhaps five.

"Now, the ones that came from up the street [the Depository area] were quite a bit louder than the one from the fence.  That's how I could tell they were from different rifles."

AP CW, Tom Johnson: [Holland] said he saw smoke issue from the trees near the fence at the same time he heard the report.  Oakland Tribune (AP)

[Also see New York Times, Peter Kihss, 11/23]

11/22/66
Edward. Jay .Epstein ... told some 200 University of California students yesterday that the Warren Commission "conducted a superficial investigation" into the death of President Kennedy.

He called on the government to establish immediately panels of experts to re-examine the evidence.

He said that if the "single bullet" theory were abandoned "all the rest of the facts will fall down like a house of cards."  San Francisco Chronicle
11/22/66
Atlanta, Ga. -- Sen. Richard Russell, D-GA .. a member of the Warren commission … said recently he disagreed with Commission findings about the shots fired at the Presidential motorcade, but agreed with the general finding that Lee Harvey Oswald, acting alone, killed Kennedy.

... Responding to numerous inquiries revolving around the controversy over the Warren Commission's Report, Russell issued a statement from his ... home today.

..."It is quite easy to raise questions about nearly every aspect of this tragic event and of the commission's report," Russell said.

"I am not completely satisfied about the completeness of some of the answers.  But the Commission was compelled to make its report on the basis of the evidence 'before it and not on speculation, rumors and questions.

"While I have not read all of the articles and books written about this hearing, have not known of any instance where the author brought forward any hard testimony to answer the questions that are so easy to raise."  AP 626 pes

11/23/66
Dallas - Dist. Attorney Henry Wade ... who was one of the first to praise the Warren Commission Report, now believes there are "unanswered questions" concerning the ... assassination.  Wade emphasized yesterday that he was not asking for a new investigation. ...

One unsettled point, he said, was whether ... Oswald was aided or directed in shooting the President.  AP CW 1149 pcs

11/23/66
Insert to main story, giving dark Lane's reaction to comments by Governor Connally at press conference in Austin:

In New York, Lane replied that Connally "displayed an abysmal ignorance to the implications of his own testimony."

"It is to be regretted," Lane said, "that Governor Connally has sought to terminate the search for the truth - an effort that has begun in this country so recently.  It is even more astonishing that he has sought to bring back the days of McCarthyism, by questioning the loyalty and motives of those who will not accept a false governmental edict."  AP 514 pcs

See also Lane statement, New York Times, 11/24/66.  "If the bullet that struck President Kennedy did not also strike the Governor, then there was no lone assassin," Mr. Lane said.

11/23/66
Austin, TX - Governor John Connally … held firmly today to his belief that only one sniper fired.

... "I am convinced without any doubt that I was not struck by the first bullet," Connally said.  " ... I retain my original view and I always shall."

... "But just because I disagree with the Warren Commission on this one finding does not mean I disagree with their overall findings," the Governor said.

Connally said he is "satisfied beyond any doubt" that there was only one assassin, not two or more as some critics of the Warren Commission have theorized.

... Connally said he believes there was only one assassin, rather than more as he first imagined, because of "all the testimony ... because I have complete trust in the Commission.  There is no reason why a fleeting thought of my own should be given great probative value."  AP 514 pcs

11/23/66
From partial transcript of Governor Connally's press conference:

Q: May I ask are you satisfied beyond any shadow of a doubt there was one and only one assassin?

A: I have no reason to question it whatsoever.

Q: How do you square this when the Commission finds that you were hit by the first shot?

A: Obviously, there is room for disagreement because of the time factor involved.  [Discussion of this.]  I think this in itself provides sufficient leeway … to provide an area of disagreement and yet not provide any great substantive difference.

Q: Do you think the person who fired the first shot is the same person that hit you with the second shot?

A: That is the finding of the Commission and I have no reason whatever to question it.  AP 713 pcs

11/23/66
From partial transcript of Governor Connally's press conference:

I think the Commission did an outstanding job under difficult circumstances.  Each of the members of that Commission ... are men of unquestioned integrity of long and devoted service to their nation ... and men whose patriotism has been manifested so many ... that it now is somewhat shocking to me that in the backlash of tragedy journalistic scavengers such as Mark Lane, attempt to impugn the motives of these members individually, cast doubts upon the commission as a whole and question the credibility of the government itself.

I think it is time that we pause and reflect on who these individuals are and rather than calling for a further investigation of the assassination, which in my judgment is neither warranted, justified or desirable.  We should turn our attention to doing a little research on and evaluation of the credentials of the self-appointed experts who, with no evidence, no new facts, nevertheless use distortion, inference, innuendo, in order to cast doubts and create confusion.  I suspect that a searching investigation into their own credentials will divulge that their motives have political overtones and that their views have been given prominence out of proportion to their value.  AP 713 pcs

11/24/66
Philadelphia – District Attorney Arlen Specter ... says Texas Governor John B. Connally is "just incorrect" in disputing the "single bullet" decision.  ...

Specter, at a news conference yesterday, said, however, he did not eliminate the possibility three bullets hit [JFK and Connally] but said, "in any event, the single-shot assumption is well-founded."  AP A123 788aes

11/26/66
From text of statement by J. Edgar Hoover [requested by Washington Evening Star]:

The Warren Commission and its findings ... currently are being severely criticized.  The conclusions of the Commission, especially its conclusion that Lee Harvey Oswald acted alone in the assassination, have been openly challenged.

...  While there is a difference in the information reported by the FBI and the information contained in the autopsy report concerning the wounds, there is no conflict.

... Recently the charge has been made that the FBI altered the film of the assassination taken by Abraham Zapruder.  This is totally false.  The FBI never had the original Zapruder film in its possession - it was purchased by a national magazine.  The FBI obtained a copy of the original uncut film and reproduced this for the commission, which since has turned it over to national archives.

... Not one shred of evidence has been developed to link any other person in a conspiracy with Oswald to assassinate president Kennedy.  All available evidence and facts point to one conclusion - that Oswald acted alone in his crime.  New York Times
11/27/66
Q: You have considerable experience with criminology and legal affairs in your long term in and out of Congress.  Do you think that Lee Harvey Oswald could have been convicted under the laws of your state by the evidence that you saw?

A: Boggs: Oh, no question about it!

Q: The evidence was legally binding, none of it would have been thrown out by constitutionality rules and so forth?

A: I don't think there is any question about the fact that he could have been convicted of first-degree murder.  Interview of Hale Boggs KCBS, Face the Nation
11/27/66
Announcer - Ted Sorensen had a theory on why there are some who doubt the Warren Report:

Sorensen - If he had been the victim of a right wing or left wing plot, people would at least feel he was a martyr to a cause.  But to have him taken from us at his peak simply because a lunatic was lucky with a high-powered rifle is a terrible thing for people to accept, add it is difficult to accept, but I accept it.  ABC, Voices in the Headlines, KGO, San Francisco

11/27/66
Hale Boggs on Face the Nation, KCBS.  See partial transcript made from tape.

11/28/66
Chief Justice Earl Warren isn't overly perturbed by the continued criticism of the way the Warren commission conducted its investigation of the Kennedy assassination.  [He] tells friends that there will always be unanswered questions, but that the evidence overwhelmingly supports the conclusion that Lee Harvey Oswald was the sole killer of President Kennedy.  "I was a district attorney in California for twelve years," Warren reminded one Administration official recently, "... and if I were still a district attorney and the Oswald case came into my jurisdiction, given the same evidence I could have gotten a conviction in two days and never heard about the case again."  Newsweek, Warren on the Warren Commission Report
11/29/66
Houston, TX - Critics of the Warren Commission's conclusions about the assassination ... drew a rebuttal yesterday from Leon Jaworski, who was special counsel in a separate investigation by the Texas attorney general.

Jaworski, mentioned as a possible choice for U.S. Attorney General, ... listed points which he said support the Commission’s conclusion that Kennedy was killed and ... Governor John Connally wounded by one man acting alone, Lee Harvey Oswald [shots fired from the rear, Oswald's rifle found in TSBD, etc.].  AP B49DN 725acs

12/66
Chart showing how the leading theorists answer the leading questions about the assassination: the Commission vs. Lane, Sauvage, Weisberg, Cook, Popkin, Salandria, Joesten, Meagher, Buchanan, Fox.

The questions: Who killed Kennedy?; how many assassins, source of the shot; were JFK and Connally hit by the same bullet; stretcher bullet planted, JFK's throat wound; did Oswald kill Tippit; Ruby's role; did Oswald have a double; why did Tippit stop Oswald [or whoever it was]?  Esquire, p. 207

12/1/66
Lane film purchased by BBC for television showing, $40,000, highest price ever paid for a film for a single transmission in United Kingdom.  U.S. distribution still being negotiated.  New York Times
12/4/66
Those who disbelieve the Warren Report feed their suspicions on loose ends.  They find something dark and conspiratorial in the fact that the pieces of the puzzle don't all fit neatly together.

To my way of thinking, that is the best assurance the Warren Report represents an honest investigation.

If there were no loose ends, no missing pieces, no dangling questions, I would be suspicious indeed.

... If the Report were the product of a conspiracy, surely that faulty diagram [autopsy] would have been doctored or replaced.  Surely the FBI agent's note would have been re-phrased or simply left out.  Surely Governor Connally would have been pressured to keep his opinion to himself.

It is ironic that the people who accuse the Warren Commission of hiding the truth draw most of their ammunition from evidence contained in the Warren Report itself -evidence the Commission could easily have omitted and no one would have been the wiser.  San Francisco examiner, Guy Wright.

12/10/66
The New York Times has undertaken a study of questions raised by the Warren Report about the assassination of President Kennedy.

Assistant Managing Editor Harrison Salisbury and National News Editor Claude Sitton are in charge of the research into confusing aspects of the tragedy.  Working fulltime on the assignment are Peter Kihss and Myer Handler, New York staff; Gene Roberts, Atlanta correspondent, who formerly did investigative work on the story for the Detroit [MI] Free Press; John Corry, Philadelphia correspondent; and Martin Waldron, a Southern correspondent.

Some correspondents in the Washington bureau of the Times are devoting part-time to the story.  No target date has been set for publication of a full report of findings by the team.

... "We feel that our readers are interested in some of the questions that have been raised, but we don't know whether they are legitimate questions or not," explained Sitton.

"Some questions were left unanswered or caused confusion.  We simply are trying to clear up some points of confusion."  New York Times, Editor and Publisher

"[About 11/66, the New York] Times published a cautiously worded editorial acknowledging the need for answers to the serious questions that had been raised about the Warren Report.  It became an open secret that the Times had initiated its own investigation of the assassination in an attempt to rescue the Warren Commission from itself and to silence the clamor of criticism of its Report: according to Newsweek of 12/12/66, Harrison Salisbury explained, "We will go back over all the areas of doubt and hope to eliminate them."  Apparently the Times, even with all its imposing resources, did not find it possible to eliminate the areas of doubt; the investigation was aborted early in 1/67."  Sylvia Meagher, Accessories After the Fact, p. 459

12/10/66
Robert Oswald Tells Jerry Flemmons of the Fort Worth Star-Telegram he is writing a book about Lee's overall character, which he says was cut short by the Warren Commission.  Said he agrees Lee shot JFK but that the Warren Commission failed to determine why.  Hopes his book will help explain it.

Says he thinks a committee of some sort should be created to look into the so-called unanswered questions raised by Warren Commission critics.  New York Times, AP Wichita Falls, TX

12/8/66
Oswald said he did not ask for a recalling of the Warren Commission or the reopening of investigation into the assassination, but that some sort of a detailed government report should be made to the public.  AP B96dn 1152acs, Jerry Flemmons

12/12/66
World premiere 12/11, Mannheim, Germany; presented in connection with Mannheim's annual festival for documentary films.  San Francisco Chronicle [AP]

12/19/66
Would another official investigation of the Kennedy assassination silence criticism of the first one?

Not likely, says Allen Dulles.  [Uses example of Lincoln assassination.]

... "I've seen no evidence that's been presented that gives any possible clue to other assassins.

"Now, you never can prove that there weren't other assassins.  A negative of that kind is never really provable.  All you can say is that a study has been made of every lead that the Warren Commission could get its hands on, and we didn't find any hard evidence or any credible evidence that there was another assassin or more than one assassin."  U.S. News & World Report
1/4/67
Joseph A. Ball says he does not see how Ruby's death can have any effect on validity of Warren Report, sees no reason to reopen inquiry unless new evidence develops.  But I'm sure the scandal mongers who have been writing scurrilous books about the report will spread the word that there was something sinister about Ruby's death."  New York Times
1/5/67
Smoothly written review of the frequency with which chance played a critical role in the entire assassination sequence and its aftermath, including Ruby s chance death by cancer -- merely the latest example in a long series occurring with both Ruby and Oswald.  New York Times, Tom Wicker, Mystery at Original Weinsteins
1/5/67
Mrs. Marguerite Oswald called today for an investigation of the death of Jack Ruby.  "Again you have a situation that falls into place," she told a news conference at her home.

She criticized again the conclusions of the Warren Report, and waded into the unanswered questions which she blamed on closed sessions, suppressed evidence, unchallenged contradictions, conflicting expert testimony, negligent commission procedures, misstatement of commission procedures.  …  AP B122 Mike Cochran, Fort Worth

1/13/67
Shows 36 percent of Americans now think Oswald was the lone killer as compared with 29 % in 1963 late in November; that 64 % now feel others were involved compared with 71 % in 1963; also shows 32 % favor another investigation compared with 63 who don't and 5 % who have no opinion.  San Francisco Chronicle, Gallup Poll.

1/15/67
Interesting Sunday feature, admitting a conspiracy to kill Lincoln but dismissing it as one a contemptible little gang of thugs, without any connection with Confederacy.

Without naming the Warren Commission, he concludes: "Another important lesson is that, for the maintenance of a proper national spirit, the fullest possible light should be thrown upon these dread events at once -- it was not until the middle 1930s that vital war department records upon Lincoln's murder were made public -- and that accredited persons of judgment should furnish a full record devoid of malice, innuendo, or sensationalism."  AP Allan Nevins

[Cut version in Oakland Tribune, 1/15/67]

1/16/67
An American born British jurist, Arthur L. Goodhart, Oxford professor emeritus, 75, reviews main published material in the January issue of the Law Quarterly, which he edits.  Pleads for an end to the controversy over the assassination.  Defends Warren Report mainly by attacking its critics and pointing out they disagree among themselves.  AP London

1/30/67
Four and a half hour television debate on assassination; Lane, David Belin, Arlen Specter, summing up by Lord Devlin and Alexander M. Bickel.  Lord Devlin argued there was no reasonable doubt of Oswald's guilt; Bickel said Commission's conclusion [single bullet hitting JFK and Connally] not convincing, and suggested investigation be reopened, possibly by a full-time group of two or three retired judges.  BBC switchboard jammed with complaints that Lane had not been given a fair hearing.  AP, San Francisco Examiner
1/30/67
Marathon telecast by the BBC on JFK death, using part of Lane film [British premiere] ends with a split verdict by a jury of Lord Devlin and Alexander Bickel of Yale.

Lane debated David Belin and Arlen Specter in an "angry confrontation."  Belin stood on the evidence.  Specter made the interesting admission that the one-bullet conclusion was "not indispensable" to the Warren Commission case, that there could have been an earlier shot fired by Oswald, meaning that Governor Connally could have been struck by a second shot.

Devlin and Bickel held that Lane, whose film was shown in part, had presented no new evidence.  But whereas Devlin said public interest already had been served by the Warren Commission findings, Bickel said he still felt the confused evidence over the number of bullets justified a reopening of the case by a small, full-time official body.  San Francisco Chronicle, Times-Post Service, London 

2/12/67
In television debate, 2/12., WNEW, Lane accused by Louis Nizer of "outrageous and slanderous accusations … puny nitpicking and incorrect at that," said Lane prejudged the Report before it was issued, while traveling about lecturing to paying audiences.  Said no other weapon, cartridge shell, bullet or rifle ever found or claimed by any critic.

Program mainly a defense of Warren Commission, as rebuttal to 11/12 program in which critics of Report were in the majority, including Lane.  Participants: Lane, Nizer, Albert E. Benner and Alfredda Scobey.  San Francisco Sunday Examiner & Chronicle
2/21/67
From feature story on Lane:

Last August Rush to Judgment was published.  ...  And now, three years after the fact, a Harris poll finds that 54 per cent of the American people think the Warren Commission left 'a lot of unanswered questions about who killed Kennedy' and, according to a Gallup poll, an even more substantial majority, 64 per cent, feel that Oswald did not act alone.

Lane's detractors claim that he fails to offer any answers; that may well be true, but perhaps it is enough that he offers questions. ...  Some of his findings have given thoughtful people pause and he is at least one of the reasons why so many prominent rational voices - the New York Times, the Saturday Evening Post, Life magazine, the London Times, Walter Lippmann, others - have called out at this time for a reopening of the investigation.  Oakland Tribune, Mike McGrady

2/21/67
From feature story on Lane:

"Punishing the culprit is not the only reason you try to find out the facts about historical events.  There was no known culprit when the French government pardoned Dreyfus.  When they changed their position it was not because they found a culprit, but because it was wrong to say that someone committed a serious crime when in fact he was innocent.  Wrong on moral grounds.

"I've never said Oswald was innocent.  I think there's no question he could not have been convicted at a trial.  Did he do it or was there more than one person involved?  I think the evidence that there were at least two people is conclusive."  Oakland Tribune, Mike McGrady

3/6/67
LA Times, The Harris Survey
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23%
28%

One man
35%
34%
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21%
20%

Not sure
27%


Should be reopened
58%


Not sure
15%


3/8/67
Charles Roberts, who with Merriman Smith were the only reporters on Air Force One on way back to Washington, writes book endorsing main conclusions of Warren Report, disagrees with Manchester about LBJ's alleged boorish behavior, and answers "the Warren Report critics.”  Oakland Tribune UPI Washington

3/9/67
Weekly L'Observatore della Domenica said yesterday Warren Commission findings not convincing.  "Many questions were left unanswered," said an editorial which surveyed the Warren Report and the current Mew Orleans probe.  San Francisco Chronicle UPI Vatican City

[See also AP 3/8/67]

4/2/67
Blurb for new book, The Scavengers and Critics of the Warren Report, by Lawrence Schiller and Richard Warren Lewis, the latter producer of Controversy, the record which had Jack Ruby s death-bed tape recording.  San Francisco Sunday Examiner-Chronicle, LA Herald-Examiner Dick Houdek

4/5/67
Wesley J. Liebeler debates three local men before the Young Democrats Club.  Says Warren Commission operated on the belief that "truth was our only client." 500 heard.  Edward G. Marshall, former Clark County DA, said "I believe the Warren Commission’s report was a whitewash in the sense that it withholds certain information from the public and in the sense that it did not reveal the truth."

Tom Wilson, city editor of the Las Vegas Review Journal, and Deputy District Attorney, George Spizzirri agreed with Marshall.

Liebeler said the Warren Commission's investigators were given free rein and had even looked into areas not covered in the 26 volumes.  [why not?]

"Don t you think that all of us young attorneys would have loved to discover a conspiracy after the FBI, CIA and Secret Service failed?" he asked.  AP C40vg 1102aps Las Vegas

4/18/67
Lane: The first opportunity for a legal opinion regarding; the Warren Commission Report [was when] it was introduced into court ... in New Orleans [by] Clay Shaw, charged by Garrison wits conspiracy to assassinate President Kennedy.  He introduced it as a defense document and the court ruled that it is not admissible; the Warren Report - first judicial ruling - the Warren Report is filled with contradictions and with hearsay.  And the other judge said, "Hearsay? - it's hearsay five or six times removed from the original source."  It's the only judicial ruling on the Report itself.  Transcribed from tape, Joe Dolan Show, KNEW Oakland

4/20/67
[Story on McGeorge Bundy, President of the Ford Foundation, speaking at a meeting of the American Society of Newspaper Editors.]

... Regarding the Warren Commission controversy, Bundy said a large part of the speculation regarding the number of bullets fired at President John F. Kennedy and the number of Kennedy assassinators was "built upon the assumption that the back of the human neck and its front are at almost the same height."

After stating that "in fact a line from the shoulder blade to the necktie knot may be level or downward," Bundy asked: "Is it not remarkable that in all the reviews of all the magazines and papers no one considered the simple observation" until it was reported this spring in the magazine American Scholar?"  AP A66WX

5/67
The author described as an expert on firearms and forensic ballistics, criticizes the commission for not calling in firearms expects instead of relying on bullet print specialists and the like.

When compared to the scope of the investigation -- the 10 months of work and the 26 volumes of testimony -- the lack of quality and limitations of the firearms intelligence are shocking."

Says at least two types of fragmenting ammunition for Oswald's rifle were available which could have done what the commission ascribes to Oswald's rifle.

... The usual way to handle a "hot potato" that has political angles is to appoint a committee and ride out the storm.  This was done in the Sacco-Vanzetti case [the Lowell Committee] and in the more recent Pearl Harbor scandal [the Roberts Committee].

The Kennedy assassination triggered the Warren Commission, which wasted little time in turning on the stupidity.  In its clumsy efforts to calm more than half the civilized world, it dropped the ball - and this fumble raised more questions than it answered - thus the Warren Commission joined two famous predecessors as failures.  …  Guns, Backfire!, p. 20

5/22/67
"Anything from the Warren Report is inadmissible as evidence," Sam Monk Zelden, attorney for Dean Adams Andrews, told reporters after prosecution referred to Andrews' testimony before Warren Commission in 1963 during hearing on motion to quash perjury indictment.  Zelden said he based this on the ruling by the three-judge panel.  New Orleans States-Item
6/10/67
New Orleans - carefully balanced review of JFK assassination by Jack Wardlaw, concluding that there is ample evidence to discredit both Warren Report and Garrison's theory of what happened.  Points out Garrison still under restrictions of court guidelines and that his further evidence, if any, will prove interesting. -- New Orleans States-Item
6/25/67
Newsweek, 8/25/69 describes Marc Golden as CBS’s director of program development [and a former CIA agent] …’  Does not say when he joined CBS or when he became director.  Was he with CBS when it produced the program on the Warren Report, broadcast 6/25-28/67?

11/15/67
Criticism of the Commission and the Report.  "The Commission printed 10 million words, 26 large volumes, but it couldn't find space for documents as short as six lines of type which would have contradicted its story."  The Gator, [San Francisco State College student paper], Harold Weisberg, interview

[Also see Weisberg interview, LA Free Press, 11/24/67.]

11/24/67
Harold Weisberg, in interview with LA Free Press, quotes from tape recording of remarks by Wesley Liebeler describing his personal re-writing of section of Warren Report, to conclude that "Leon Oswald" could not have been "Lee Oswald."  Liebeler says "on the night of the 9/20 or 9/21 when we were going over the page proofs of the Report for the last time," a report was received from the FBI that the three men who had visited Sylvia Odio had been found.  He rewrote the section that night and sent it to the Government Printing Office.  Weisberg points out that no member of the Commission saw this before it was published.  LA Free Press
[Also see Weisberg 11/13/68]

12/30/67
Holmes Alexander column on LBJ's campaigning technique involving handshaking forays into crowds. "… We lives in the night of small knives and long rifles.  The Warren Commission's hurry-up verdict on the Kennedy assassination is no longer believed.  If the daylight murder wasn't done by a lone, demented gunman then it was a conspiracy, abhor the idea as we may …"  New Orleans States-Item

1/31/68
Griscom Morgan reports the Journal of Forensic Sciences contains symposium on the Warren Report in which Jay Schwartz declares in the legal study that "The Warren Commission has failed to establish that Lea Harvey Oswald singly assassinated the President of the United States."  Yellow Springs, OH, News
4/7/68
James Tague's story, signed by him.  Article includes very clear photo of nick in pavement, taken by Tom Dillard of the Dallas Morning News, which should have been available to Warren Commission.  Compare with the very unsatisfactory ones published as exhibits: Tague Exhibit 1 [Hearings XXI, p. 650], Shaneyfelt Exhibit 29 [Hearings XXI, pp. 479, 480, 482].

Tague: "My eyewitness impressions given to the Warren Commission were pushed and pulled around to make them conform to the one-assassin theory. I can't go for that theory."  National Enquirer
5/7/68
On Johnny Carson show 1/31/68 [tape # 72]: after NBC stipulated Garrison could appear if he would debate a member of the Warren Commission - Garrison's reply, "Delighted. When?" - Carson was unable to get any commission member to appear and then could find no commission lawyer who would. In the week following the show, Garrison received 2,300 letters, every one supporting him.  Lane, talk given at San Pablo, CA

5/2/70
New York [UPI] - A computer expert [Richard Sprague] who analyzed 300 photographs and 25,000 frames of movies says [at press conference 5/1] President Kennedy was killed by a conspiracy involving more than 50 people, including some Dallas policemen and members of the CIA.  …

Sprague … said the assassination was "the most photographed murder in history," but that the Warren Commission examined only 26 of the 500 stills available.  San Francisco Examiner
9/15/70
Senator George Murphy [R-CA] says he doubts that Sirhan Sirhan assassinated RFK "all by himself," and says Sirhan and Oswald may have been "acting under orders.  By whose orders, I'm not certain, but somebody, I think, instigated them."

Remarks were made in departure from prepared speech to Republican business and professional club in Fremont, California, during campaign for re-election.  AP
9/15-16/71
Column by William F. Buckley, Jr. deals with 2½-hour interview of Chou En-lai by Julio Scherer Garcia, editor-manager of Excelsior, Mexico City.

"[The interview] is rich and long, full of interesting bits and pieces.  Chou tells us, for instance, that 'the truth of the assassination of President Kennedy has not yet been revealed.'"

[Paragraph containing quotation above, published 9/5/71 by Excelsior as first of 8 articles by Julio Scherer-Garcia, copied and clipped to Buckley column.] New Orleans States-Item, [9/15/71]; San Francisco Examiner [9/16/71]

11/22/71
Article titled The Warren Commission Was Right, by David Belin [assistant counsel with Warren Commission]  New York Times
8/19/72
Dr. Russell H. Morgan says pathologist who examined JFK body at autopsy made a mistake, placing entrance wound into head four inches higher than initially reported, and that Warren Report failed to clarify this, leading to false speculations about the assassination.

Dr. Morgan was a member of panel of four medical experts, appointed by Ramsey Clark, which secretly reviewed the autopsy material 2/26 and 2/27/68.  AP, New Orleans States-Item
[See Garrison Chronology 1/16/9.]

9/11/72
Peking - Premier Chou En-lai has made public hitherto unpublicized details of the reported attempt by Lin Piao to flee to the Soviet Union in 9/71, in fear that his plot to assassinate Mao Tse-tung had been discovered.

… When one editor [one of 22 visiting American newspaper editors] asked Chou about "this jigsaw puzzle," he replied, "What jigsaw puzzle?  There is no puzzle about it.  It's much clearer than your Warren Report on the assassination of President Kennedy."  - San Francisco Examiner, Robert G. Fichenberg

6/17/73
New York, [8/16][UPI] - The late President Lyndon Johnson believed that President Kennedy was slain in retaliation for a thwarted assassination attempt by a CIA-backed team in Havana,  [Janos did not quote the late President as to the specifics of the alleged CIA assassination plot in Havana, nor the target of such a plot.] according to a former Johnson aide.

In an article being published Sunday in the Atlantic Monthly, Leo Janos, now a Time magazine correspondent, said that Mr. Johnson told him in a conversation at the LBJ ranch a few months before he died, "I never believed Oswald acted alone, although I can accept that he pulled the trigger."  …

He said Mr. Johnson told him, "After the Warren Commission reported in, I asked [then Attorney General Ramsey Clark to quietly look into the whole thing.  Only two weeks later he reported back that he couldn't find anything new."

Janos said, "Disgust tinged Johnson's voice as the conversation came to an end. 'I thought I had appointed Tom Clark's son - I was wrong.'"  Washington Post
3/10/75
Story on George O'Toole, described as a former CIA technician, who says test with psychological stress evaluator [PSE] has led him to conclude that Oswald was telling the truth when he denied having killed Kennedy.  KPFA News
9/22/75
"Sen. Frank Church [D-ID] said [today] that his Senate intelligence committee may hold public hearings on the caliber of the FBI's and CIA's investigations for the Warren Commission.

He told reporters that he would not hesitate to urge reopening of the Warren Commission inquiry into President Kennedy's assassination in 1963 if the evidence seems to warrant it, but he said it would be premature to make such a recommendation now.

"The committee met in closed session pad' [today], first to hear from Senator Edward M. Kennedy [D-MA] and then to begin hearings [on another matter].

"Kennedy said later that he was still satisfied with the conclusions of the Warren Commission, including its finding that Lee Harvey Oswald acted alone in killing John F. Kennedy.   Washington Post, [9/23/75] George Lardner, Jr. 
"













































































































































See Garrison file ca. 13 Mar. 1967



































